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Golden Spread Electric Cooperative, Inc. is a tax-exempt, consumerowned public utility organized in 1984 to provide low cost, reliable
electric service for its 16 rural distribution cooperative Members. Golden
Spread’s Member systems serve more than 213,000 Member-Consumers
located in the Panhandle, South Plains and Edwards Plateau regions of
Texas, an area covering 24 percent of the state, and in the Panhandle of
Oklahoma and in portions of Kansas and Southeastern Colorado. Golden
Spread operates in two reliability regions – the Southwest Power Pool and
the Electric Reliability Council of Texas.
Golden Spread and its subsidiaries own or control 794 megawatts of
generating capacity at its facilities located at Mustang Station in Denver
City, Texas. In addition, Golden Spread is currently building an additional
246.2 megawatts of generation, 176 megawatts of which will be eligible
to meet its capacity needs. The remainder of Golden Spread’s needs are
met through the purchase of approximately 725 megawatts of capacity
and energy from other power suppliers.
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Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses
Operating Margins, before Fixed Charges
Fixed Charges before AFUDC	
AFUDC on Borrowed Funds
Non-Operating Margins
Net Margins
Total Assets
Long-Term Debt
Patronage Capital and Contributed Capital

396,926,939
348,907,842
48,019,097
11,867,362
4,137,591
6,852,771
47,130,097
583,719300
141,114,221
265,675,632
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345,640,958
311,564,668
34,076,290
10,945,708
–
1,341,869
24,472,451
414,066,909
148,291,769
222,975,598

43.07		
1.16		
3.48		
4.07		
50.24		
2.14		

50.71
2.96
2.69
3.47
58.08
4.64

62.82
41.90

$
$

51.34
36.41

Energy Sales to Members (MWh) - Total
Energy Sales to Nonmembers (MWh)
Total Energy Sales (MWh)

5,453,317		
1,356,177
6,809,494

5,683,372
973,788
6,657,160

Member Peak Demand (MW) - Total		
Member System Load Factor (%) 		
Energy Generated (MWh)		
Energy Purchased (MWh)		

1,372		
45.37		
746,079		
6,211,504		

1,290
50.28
1,106,991
5,718,545

F i n a n c i a l R at i o s
Total Equity (%)
Current Ratio		
Debt Service Coverage Ratio		
Debt/Funds Available for Debt Service		
Total Equity/Total Capitalization (%)		
Net Plant/Net Debt		

O p e r at i n g S tat i s t i c s
$
$

Average Sales Price/MWh – Members
Average Sales Price/MWh – Nonmembers

10-Year Net Margin History

Average Rate to Members

Sales to Members

(in Millions of Dollars)

(in Dollars per Megawatt-Hour)

(in Millions of Kilowatt-Hours)
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$52.7

High natural gas prices and the
availability of excess energy in
2005, 2007 and 2008 resulted
in substantial margins from
nonmember sales in those years.
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Average rate to Members fluctuated with changes in
natural gas prices and an increase in base rates in 2010.
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Other than fluctuations caused by weather conditions,
Member sales have shown steady growth.
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The mission of Golden Spread
Electric Cooperative is to
engage in long-term power
supply planning, negotiate and
secure reliable power supply
resources for its Members and
act jointly with its Member
Systems to continue to provide
and develop dependable,
low-cost electric service and
other services to enhance the
quality of life for their MemberConsumers.
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LETTER F RO M T H E P r e s i d e n t

Sometimes you wonder

We also must deal with

where a year has gone.

the fact that several power

When I look back at 2010,

supply options are off the

I am amazed at how

table due to our geographic

much Golden Spread has

location and the current

accomplished in just one

political climate. Until new

year. In 2010 the inspirations

transmission is built, we

of our past met with current

cannot purchase power

innovations in very tangible ways. The result was rapid

from others because there is no existing infrastructure

implementation of solutions that will secure Golden

to transmit the energy to the areas where most of our

Spread’s future. I am confident that the actions of our

Member load is located. As for new resources, the

board of directors and staff in 2010 will benefit Golden

addition of a new coal unit is practically impossible to

Spread’s Members for years to come.

build at this time, given the cost of complying with all

	The theme of this year’s annual report is “Inspiration
Meets Innovation.” We adopted this theme because

the new rules affecting coal-fired generation and the
economic risk of future regulations.

of an appreciation that much of the industry’s

	To meet a 2012 power shortfall, Golden Spread

current technology actually reflects the evolution of

is currently building eighteen natural gas-fired

technologies firmly rooted in the past. Our theme is

reciprocating engines at Antelope Station. Using the

intended as a reminder that history inspires innovation.

General Electric (GE) combustion turbine-generator

The fact that Golden Spread exists is a tribute to

in storage and owned by Golden Spread would have

the inspiration of its founders. Its success today is

seemed like the logical choice to serve Golden Spread’s

attributable to the inspiration and innovations of

Members. This unit was acquired several years ago at

successive boards of directors and staff members.

an attractive price and would have offered the lowest

	Our need for new resources is significant in the
coming years. Member load growth and expiring power
purchase agreements demand significant new resources

capital cost solution to meeting intermediate-term
capacity requirements.
However, from a strategic standpoint, the lowest

to serve our Members. Furthermore, we must make

capital cost solution was not necessarily the best

decisions about how to meet these demands at a time

solution. Adding another simple cycle generating unit

when key questions regarding national and state energy

similar to the units Golden Spread owns at Mustang

policy remain unanswered. What impact will new

Station would increase Golden Spread’s dependence

carbon regulations have on our operations? Will the

on this form of gas generation technology. Also, a new

state or national legislatures mandate renewable energy

simple cycle unit would lack the operational flexibility

requirements? If we concentrate on natural gas-fueled

needed to optimize Golden Spread’s operation in

resources, how will our Members fare if the cost of

the “Integrated Marketplace” being developed by the

natural gas increases? This uncertainty requires us to

Southwest Power Pool (SPP). For these reasons, Golden

engineer a high degree of flexibility into our resource

Spread decided it had to take a hard look at alternatives

decisions.

to installing the stored units.
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Ultimately, the Golden Spread board authorized

provide the flexibility needed to take full advantage of

implementation of a strategy that offers fuel diversity,

the new SPP Integrated Marketplace. Also, they use

operational flexibility, water conservation and

virtually no water.

significant hedges against both future greenhouse
gas regulations and potential renewable resource
mandates. The strategy involves development of three
major energy projects that were conceived, designed
and will be constructed in just 18 months. These
projects make use of local resources and familiar
technologies.

	The second of the three projects is the 78.2 MW
Golden Spread Panhandle Wind Ranch, which will
consist of thirty-four 2.3 MW Siemens wind turbinegenerators. These units are designed to take optimal
advantage of the abundant wind resources in our area
and offer Golden Spread a hedge against greenhouse
gas regulations, renewable resource mandates and high

	The local resources are wind and natural gas. The
familiar technologies are wind-powered generators and
reciprocating engine-powered generators. Long before
farmers and ranchers had electric cooperatives deliver
central station power, they relied on small windpowered generators, backed up by either batteries or
small engine generators, to supply limited amounts

natural gas prices. And, of course, they use no water.
	The third project is the two billion cubic foot
Fort Concho Gas Storage facility. This facility is key
to Golden Spread’s overall strategy of developing a
resource plan that includes wind-powered generation
backed up by gas-fueled engine generators. For the

of electric power. Those early
generation technologies have
come a long way over the years.
	The first of the three projects
is the 168 megawatt Antelope
Station, which will consist of
eighteen 9.3 megawatt Wärtsilä
engine generators. These natural
gas-fueled reciprocating engine
generators have advanced
technology that makes them fuel
efficient and allows them to start
more quickly than any other
technology available including
jet engines. The Wärtsilä units
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today’s
technological
breakthroughs
reflect the
evolution of
technology
firmly rooted
in the past

plan to work, the gas must be
immediately available when wind
generation is reduced. Fort Concho
can supply real-time, no-notice gas.
All of these assets will serve our
Members well into the future.
The initiation and ongoing
supervision of these major
construction projects represented
only part of the professional
challenges faced by the Golden
Spread staff in 2010. Staff also had
to take steps to arrange financing of
these and future projects, address
increasing reliability issues, respond

to the continued development of the SPP Integrated

	As we reflect on 2010, we are proud of Golden

Marketplace, and operate our existing generation assets Spread’s past and confident in its future. Golden
Spread has a great track record because our Members
to minimize Member costs and maximize resource
value. To meet these and future challenges, Golden

consistently have provided solid support to the

Spread has continued to develop its internal staff

organization. Time and again they have signed on to

capabilities. In 2010 Golden Spread doubled its staff

support the investments needed for Golden Spread

with the addition of 16 new employees.

to succeed. Our board of directors has consistently
demonstrated a focus on long-term results. That long-

Golden Spread also capitalized on an unexpected

term focus is paying big dividends. Our management

opportunity in 2010. The board’s decision to pursue

team also understands that the entire Golden Spread

the wind/Wärtsilä resource combination postponed

team must work together and has the responsibility

deployment of the combined cycle generation

of bringing our many new staff additions up to speed

equipment held in storage until the 2013-2015

and instilling in them the importance of teamwork

timeframe. By that time, this equipment, which was

and commitment to success. We know that winning is

originally manufactured several years ago, would not be

accomplished by the players on the field. For Golden

“state-of-the-art.” Additionally the capacity of the stored Spread, the many new employees we have recruited
steam turbine-generator was much smaller than desired. bring experience and passion to the team, and their
	In August, an affiliate of GE approached Golden
Spread to request an expedited purchase of Golden
Spread’s stored steam turbine-generator. Although the
circumstances offered the opportunity to negotiate a
sale on favorable terms, we knew that we would need
a steam turbine-generator in the future. We also were
concerned that prices of combined cycle steam turbinegenerators could increase significantly in the 2014 time
frame. We knew we had to hedge that exposure.

contributions are already adding to Golden Spread’s
success.
With the expected commercial operation in 2011
of the Golden Spread Panhandle Wind Ranch and
Antelope Station, farms and ranches served by our
Members will once again have energy generated by
wind and backed up by engine generators. This “new”
energy supply will conserve scarce water, reduce
greenhouse gas emissions, provide a hedge against
costly legislative and regulatory mandates and improve

	The Golden Spread team negotiated the sale of the

reliability. I know that Golden Spread’s ongoing success

stored steam turbine-generator to one GE company on

as an organization will be shaped by the inspiration

favorable terms and the concurrent purchase of a new,

and innovations of existing and future members of the

state-of-the-art, larger capacity steam turbine-generator

Golden Spread team.

from another GE company for delivery in 2014.
	Planning for the future is one of Golden Spread’s two
core responsibilities; the other is conducting day-to-day
operations. Our operational objective is to minimize
the cost of energy delivered to our Members and to
maximize the value of the resources that they support.

Mark W. Schwirtz
President and General Manager

In 2010, we had great success in meeting that objective.
Overall, we were successful in keeping our rates at
reasonable levels while earning $47 million in margins.
We also returned $5.3 million in capital credit refunds
to our Members in February 2011.
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our success is built when the
inspiration of our Members
guides and inspires us in meeting
the innovation in technology
and systems available in today’s
marketplace
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mindful
of the past;
preparing
for the future
G o l den Spread Electric Cooperative, inc.
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Golden Spread experienced a year of change in
2009, and in 2010 moved forward to implement a
transition from reliance on external power suppliers to
a robust organization with broad internal capabilities
and a diverse generation fleet. In this period of
implementation and growth, Golden Spread Electric
Cooperative continues to build on the vision and
traditional values of its Members, while embracing new
technologies and ideas to fulfill one constant purpose:
to provide low-cost, reliable energy to its Members and
their Member-Consumers. Golden Spread has balanced
awareness of its Members’ history with creative
strategies for moving forward to best serve its Members’
needs.
	In planning for the future, we are inspired by the
past. The ancestors of our Member-Consumers carved
out a livelihood in this area as farmers and ranchers. In
the early years, they had no electricity and relied on a
local natural resource – wind – to pump water. Over
time, they used the wind to power small generators and

to pump water. When the wind was not blowing, they
used energy stored in batteries or relied on small engine
generators for electricity.
	Later, these farmers and ranchers formed our
Member electric cooperatives to provide electricity
purchased from wholesale suppliers. Our Members
formed Golden Spread to assure that their MemberConsumers’ electricity requirements would be met.
Golden Spread in turn has invested in gas turbines,
steam turbines and gas engines to serve Member
needs. Today, Golden Spread also has returned to wind
turbines to meet electricity requirements.
Members’ values and principles guide our
preparation for the future. From wind turbines to gas
engines, 2010 brought new additions in technology.
Golden Spread also continued growing its people,
in both number and experience, to meet the new
demands of an expanded generation fleet. During the
implementation of this growth strategy, we navigated
our way around a changing industry and a depressed
economy to post another impressive financial year. As
we reflect on 2010, we see how our Members’ past
meets with present technology and changes on many
fronts. We believe that our success is built when the
inspiration of our Members’ foundation guides and
inspires us in meeting the innovation in technology and
systems available in today’s new marketplace.
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P e o p l e : O u r M o s t I m p o r ta n t A s s e t
Finding and hiring the right people for Golden Spread
was only half the job, as Golden Spread also needed a
place to put them. The large growth in staff required a
long-term expansion plan for office space. Golden Spread
has been located in Amarillo for 27 years. In conducting
its due diligence on office space expansion, the board of
directors considered all options including expanding and
remodeling the existing leased facilities, purchasing or
constructing a new facility and even relocating Golden
Spread’s headquarters from Amarillo to Lubbock, Texas,
which is more centrally located among Golden Spread’s
Member Systems. However, the board of directors and
employees of Golden Spread remain committed to
the Amarillo community and recognize the wealth of
	To meet these challenges, Golden Spread management
resources and the forward-thinking business environment
in 2009 developed a strategy to more than triple its
available in the Amarillo area.
staff in two years, bringing many of the professional
	In recognition of this commitment and the value
capabilities of its outside consultant team in-house and
Golden Spread has brought to the Amarillo community
building an internal staff to address the needs of its
through the years, the Amarillo Economic Development
expanding business. Implementation of this plan was the
Corporation (AEDC)
focus of 2010. Management
awarded a job retention
continued identifying
and expansion incentive
internal staff needs, and
grant to Golden Spread
our veteran consultants
to be paid over the next
continued imparting their
10 years. In consideration
knowledge to staff, while
for this grant, Golden
maintaining their roles in
Spread entered into an
specialty areas. Golden
agreement with the AEDC
Spread expanded in 2010
to maintain its corporate
from 16 to 30 employees
headquarters in Amarillo
working in four locations
throughout Texas.
through 2021.
For years, Golden Spread met its Members’ needs
with wholesale power purchases from other utilities.
During this time, Golden Spread relied on a lean internal
staff and key outside consultants to serve the needs of its
Members. Today Golden Spread is planning, constructing
and operating a diverse fleet of generation resources in
two different energy markets and addressing expanding
federal and state regulations. These activities call for a
different organizational model. Implementing Golden
Spread’s new vision requires a significantly expanded
and highly qualified internal staff to monitor construction
activities, assure compliance with regulatory requirements
and address financial needs.
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in 2010, Golden
Spread expanded
from 16 to 30
employees

Industry Outlook

These two pages: With the

	The electric industry remains in a state of flux, and Golden

expansion of office space,

Spread continues to adapt to industry changes while adhering to

including a board room

its core principles. Continued expansion of the transmission grid,

with advanced audio-visual

changing markets and legislative and regulatory developments

technology and a staircase

were all major areas of uncertainty in 2010. These areas

under construction for quick

constantly change, and managing around that change requires a

access between floors.

expansion of staff comes an

strategic focus to address both short-term and long-term needs.
Golden Spread’s team strives to be proactive rather than reactive,
and our firm foundation helps us stay centered on the goals of
our Members.
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T r a n s mi s s i o n a n d
energy Markets
	Electricity never sleeps. Electricity is being transmitted
through the electric transmission system every second of
every day. Electricity also is a unique commodity. Like
natural gas, soybeans or coffee, electricity is bought and sold
in different markets. However, unlike these commodities,
no method exists to store electricity. This trait of electricity
is important for consumers. If a heavy freeze destroys next
year’s coffee crop, a coffee lover can immediately stock
up at Starbucks. However, an electric consumer cannot
store extra electricity in the kitchen pantry. For many uses,
there is no substitute for electricity. A coffee drinker can
substitute tea; however, one cannot charge an iPad with gas.
These unique factors make the creation and operation of
competitive and reliable energy markets extremely difficult.
Golden Spread’s territory is unique in that it
serves Members in two reliability areas, SPP
and ERCOT. This map shows how Golden
Spread’s service territory relates to these
reliability areas, as well the Western Electricity
Coordinating Council.

Transmission planning has been an important
industry topic for the last several years. This
map shows major transmission lines planned
both in the SPP and ERCOT areas and how
the lines relate to Golden Spread’s service
territory.
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Golden Spread both monitors and participates in
wholesale energy markets. Wholesale energy markets
exist when multiple electricity generators offer their
generation output to multiple power purchasers. Golden
Spread participates in the Southwest Power Pool (SPP)
and Electric Reliability Council of Texas (ERCOT)
markets, both of which are developing changes to their
current market designs. These market changes ideally
will facilitate the efficient exchange of energy and the
integration of intermittent renewable generation into the
power supply mix. However, significant challenges exist
as diverse market participants maneuver for position.

	Policy makers and industry participants continue
to struggle with this limitation. Millions of dollars
and thousands of hours have gone into major market
redesigns seeking competitive benefits despite
transmission constraints. Policy makers are also
attempting to increase transmission capacity. Both the
SPP and ERCOT have implemented comprehensive
high voltage transmission construction plans to improve
interconnectivity within their respective grids.

	Perhaps the greatest challenge in expanding the
transmission grid and new energy markets is the
problem of “who pays and who benefits.” There is no
	Energy market rules are changing primarily because
agreement on this issue. Transmission cost allocation
of the relationship between energy markets and
has become a hotly contested issue in the SPP and in
constraints in the electric transmission system. In 1992
other parts of the country. Some state regulators want to
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) began protect their customers from the costs of new facilities
to issue new rules that required transmission owners to
that they view as being constructed for the benefit of
accept all transmission service requests, limited only by
others. Transmission cost allocation also is a factor in
the physical capabilities of their transmission systems.
the design of new energy markets. Golden Spread has
However, the existing transmission system is incapable
supported and will continue to support policies with
of supporting the development and operation of fully
respect to transmission pricing and market design that
competitive markets. This weakness of the transmission
are rational and fair.
system has become the Achilles heel of competitive
electric markets.
Operating Revenues
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High natural gas prices and the availability of excess energy
in 2005, 2007 and 2008 resulted in substantial margins from
nonmember sales in those years.
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Sales to nonmembers declined in 2009 due to dedication of Golden
Spread resources to serve Member loads and the addition of a new
generation resource in Golden Spread’s control area of the SPP.
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L e g i s l a t iv e a n d
R e g u l at o r y
Developments
E n v i r o n m e n ta l
	Legislative and regulatory initiatives at both the
state and national levels continue to demand attention
from Golden Spread. In 2010, federal legislation was
proposed that included provisions affecting carbon
gas emissions. If enacted, this legislation would have
affected all generators relying on fossil fuels. As
environmental legislation lost traction in Congress in
the summer of 2010, the Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA) initiated a rulemaking to regulate
greenhouse gas rules under the Clean Air Act. In
response, legislative proposals have been circulated that
are intended to neutralize this regulatory initiative. This
development has pitted legislators against regulators
at the national level, and electricity generators around

Because electricity is not stored and is constantly

the country continue to watch as a major policy battle

produced to meet demand, operating an electric

plays out. The results will significantly affect the cost

generation fleet requires constant attention to loads

of the generation resources needed to provide for

and generation output. As electric load increases or

consumer demand.

decreases, generation output must adjust to maintain

	This waiting game creates substantial issues for
all electricity generators, and Golden Spread is no
exception. Electricity generation from fossil fuels
will likely be subject to some form of regulatory or
legislative emissions limitation requiring significant
expense to achieve compliance. As Golden Spread’s
load grows, its Members continue to require the
addition of new power plants to meet electricity
demand. The construction of any
form of generation is an extremely
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R e l i a b i l i t y S ta n da r d s

the necessary balance. To maintain a reliable system,
safety devices are required. If the right balance of
generation to load cannot be maintained using normal
procedures, system protection devices are designed to
automatically respond to restore the necessary balance.
Selected load will be shed, or generators will be
disconnected, depending on whether there is too little
or too much generation. If automatic protective devices
fail, reliability suffers and there can
be widespread blackouts.

capital intensive process requiring

	The economic and personal

years of planning. Golden Spread

cost of widespread electricity

does not have the luxury of waiting

shortages are real even if they are

to see where the environmental dust

difficult to quantify. Therefore,

will settle and has concentrated

legislators and regulators are

its efforts on creating a diverse

taking steps to assure that the

generation fleet that anticipates

highest standards of reliability are

more stringent environmental

maintained by generation and

standards in the future.

transmission owners. Armed with

the legislative authority to issue fines of as much as

Planned Capital Expenditures
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Golden Spread is embarking on a capital expansion program of $1.7 billion over the next 10 years to build sufficient
generating capacity to meet substantially all its Members’ load requirements.
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managing load
uncertainty requires
improvisation and
innovation
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O p e r at i o n s a n d T e c h n o l o g y
	In 2010, Golden Spread continued its implementation
of a power supply plan structured to reliably and
economically meet the energy needs of its Members in
evolving energy markets. Providing for these needs has
required of Golden Spread the same kind of creative vision
and persistence shown by the farmers and ranchers who
formed its Members.
	Through the years, Golden Spread has evolved from a
wholesale energy provider completely reliant upon third
party power producers to an electricity generator owning
nearly 70 percent of the generation necessary to meet its
peak load. This progress is due to a board of directors that
understands the electric industry and remains financially
conservative while retaining an entrepreneurial spirit. This
unique combination has provided Golden Spread the
foundation for success. The theme of this year’s annual
report, “Inspiration Meets Innovation,” is best illustrated
with a look at the implementation of our power supply
plan in 2010.

resources both mitigates risks associated with reliance on
a single source or technology and also enhances Golden
Spread’s ability to provide firm power by reducing its
reliance on a few large resources.
Golden Spread also manages load uncertainty. Many
of Golden Spread’s Members have a low load factor,
attributable to large variances in the winter and summer
peak demands for electricity. These Members serve a large
number of irrigation consumers, which require greater
amounts of electricity in the spring and summer months for
crop irrigation. Irrigation load is largely driven by seasonal
weather patterns. Because weather is unpredictable, this
load also varies from year to year. Residential, commercial
and industrial consumers require a more predictable
demand for energy throughout the year. Golden Spread
also has experienced load growth above industry averages.
Managing all of this uncertainty requires improvisation and
innovation.

	The gradual reduction and ultimate loss of the SPS
	In 2010 Golden Spread initiated a program to more than contract poses two distinct challenges for Golden Spread.
double its owned generation fleet within 10 years. Golden First, the SPS contract was a system purchase backed by
Spread has focused on adding a diverse mix of generation
a large fleet of generation resources. The loss of a single
assets to its portfolio in order to replace the partial
SPS generator would not have a material impact on the
requirements contract it has with Southwestern Public
cost or supply of power. In contrast, the loss of a single
Service Company (SPS) in the SPP. Under this contract,
combustion turbine at Golden Spread’s 486 MW Mustang
Golden Spread’s capacity entitlement declines in phases
Station would reduce plant output by 50 percent. The
until 2019, when the contract terminates. A diverse mix of
second challenge involves maintaining fuel diversity. The
SPS contract provides access
to coal-fueled energy. Golden
Spread’s generation to date
has been fueled with natural
gas.
	In addition to the
challenges posed by the loss
of the SPS contract, Golden
Spread’s resource planning
has taken into consideration
emerging environmental
policies and wholesale power
markets. The generation
construction projects
implemented by Golden
Spread in 2010 account for all
of these factors.
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A n t e l o p e S tat i o n
Golden Spread’s Antelope Station is currently under
construction near Abernathy in West Texas. The project

energy efficient and use virtually no water, they are a

adds 168 megawatts of quick-start, natural-gas fired

perfect choice to supplement the intermittent nature of

generation to Golden Spread’s generation mix and

the power available from the Golden Spread Panhandle

consists of eighteen 9.3 megawatt Wärtsilä reciprocating

Wind Ranch. Antelope Station will provide enough

engine generators, each of which can reach full output

clean energy to serve the summer peak demand of

in five minutes. All 168 megawatts at Antelope Station

approximately 67,000 rural homes. These reciprocating

may be counted toward Golden Spread’s capacity

engines are an established technology being applied to

requirements. Golden Spread broke ground on Antelope

fill a unique role in Golden Spread’s generation fleet.

Station in May 2010, and the project will become
commercial in the early summer of 2011.

because Wärtsilä
engines start
quickly, are fuel
efficient and use
little water, they
are the perfect
supplement to the
intermittent wind
produced from the
Golden Spread
Panhandle Wind
Ranch
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Because these generators can start quickly, are

Golden Spread
Pa n h a n d l e W i n d R a n c h
Golden Spread’s wind generation facility, the Golden Spread
Panhandle Wind Ranch (GS PWR) is currently under construction
near Wildorado, Texas, and will have a nameplate capacity of 78.2
megawatts, 8 percent of which will count towards the capacity
needs of Golden Spread. GS PWR will be comprised of thirty-four
2.3 megawatt Siemens wind turbine-generators and is expected to
generate as much as 350,000 mWh of clean energy each year, the
equivalent of the energy used by approximately 30,000 rural homes.
GS PWR will provide both fuel and shaft diversity while offering a
hedge against future environmental restrictions.

in 2010 Golden Spread
initiated a program to
more than double its
owned generation fleet
within 10 years

Fort Concho Gas
S to r ag e Fac i l i t y
Golden Spread’s wholly owned affiliate, Fort Concho Gas Storage,
Inc. (FCGS), consists of a two billion cubic foot underground natural
gas storage facility and related assets, including oil and gas reserves.
FCGS is located in Tom Green County, near San Angelo, Texas. The
facility is designed to allow rapid withdrawal and injection of natural
gas to support operation of quick-starting generating units like the
Antelope Station Wärtsiläs to produce energy during times when wind
turbine generation subsides.
	In 2010, Golden Spread devoted significant time and resources to
completion of rework efforts at Fort Concho. These efforts included
the capping of wells required to meet regulatory requirements and the
construction of a gas compressor facility for the injection of natural gas
into the field. This work is expected to be completed in 2011.
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GE 207D-11 Combined Cycle Steam Turbine courtesy of GE Energy

S a l e o f S t e a m T u r b i n e - G e n e r at o r
	In August 2010, Golden Spread completed the sale of a 10-year-old GE D-11 steam turbinegenerator that had been in storage for several years. Golden Spread’s management and consulting
teams exercised creativity and demonstrated innovation in structuring the sale to GE of one of
Golden Spread’s long-term power supply assets. Golden Spread’s stored D-11 steam turbinegenerator had a generating capacity of 180 megawatts. The transaction was closed in a matter
of weeks to address a pressing GE need and resulted in Golden Spread’s decision to order a
new 321-MW D-11 for delivery in 2014. Thanks to the quick response of its management and
consulting teams, Golden Spread will have a newer, larger-capacity steam turbine-generator
with improved and updated technology when it constructs its next combined cycle power plant.
Golden Spread is currently considering the optimal deployment of this resource.

Ac q u i s i t i o n o f D e n v e r Ci t y E n e r g y
A s s o c i at e s , L . P.
	Denver City Energy Associates, L.P. (DCEA) owns a 50 percent undivided ownership interest in
Mustang Station and sells all of the power from that interest to Golden Spread under a long- term
power sales agreement. The other 50 percent of Mustang Station is owned by Golden Spread’s
wholly owned affiliate, GS Electric Generating Cooperative, Inc. (GSEGC). Each of these 50 percent
ownership interests are project financed and are subject to extensive control by the project lenders.
The co-ownership and financing arrangements limit the potential value of the Mustang Station
resource. Additionally, the contractual relationship with DCEA has been strained. There have been
two separate legal proceedings, each of which have included appeals. One proceeding has been
remanded to the Potter County District Court and the other recently resulted in a favorable decision
for Golden Spread from the Seventh Circuit Court of Appeals.
	In 2010, DCEA was sold as part of a portfolio of assets to an investment fund controlled by
ArcLight Energy Partners Fund IV, L.P. (ArcLight). Following that sale, Golden Spread initiated
negotiations with ArcLight for the purchase of DCEA. Those negotiations came to a successful
conclusion on April 14, 2011, when Golden Spread and Great Point Power Denver City Holdings,
LLC, the indirect owner of DCEA, signed a definitive agreement for the purchase and sale of
DCEA. Filings have been made to obtain required regulatory approvals and closing is expected to
occur in early June 2011.
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thanks to the quick response of its
management and consulting teams,
Golden Spread will have a newer, largercapacity steam turbine-generator with
improved and updated technology
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James Driver, chairman of the board, and Mark Schwirtz, president and general manager

F i n a n c i a l Y e a r i n R e vi e w
	The economic slump in the U.S. continued in 2010.

positive. In March 2011, Standard & Poor’s reaffirmed

Markets remained unstable, home prices stalled and

its credit rating of A. In August 2010, Moody’s Investor

unemployment increased in most of the country. Scarcity

Services reaffirmed its general corporate credit rating of

of capital and stringent borrowing standards hampered

A3 (equivalent to an A2 on a senior secured basis). In

growth across the electric industry. Yet, despite the

anticipation of the major financings needed to fund its

economic uncertainty of the nation, Golden Spread

construction program, Golden Spread, over a period of

maintained its financial stability through application of its

years, intentionally increased its equity ratio to climb to

conservative financial principles and visionary planning.

above 50 percent. As debt is added, that high ratio will

Golden Spread experienced near record earnings

fall, but current plans are to maintain a minimum equity

of $47.1 million in 2010. In addition, 2010 was the fifth
consecutive year that Golden Spread paid refunds of

assures that Golden Spread can realize that target.

patronage capital to its Members. The distribution of

Because of its impeccable credit and conservative

$5.3 million made in February 2011 brought the total

financial practices, Golden Spread was able to secure

distributions of capital paid to Members up to $50.8

committed credit line facilities of $275 million to support

million.

its construction program. In addition, we are planning

Golden Spread remains committed to assuring that

a $300 million private placement for May 2011 for the

it can maintain targeted equity ratios while undertaking

long-term financing of Mustang Station Unit 5, Antelope

an extremely capital intensive construction program to

Station and the Golden Spread Panhandle Wind Ranch.

help maintain these ratios. Golden Spread’s board of

These resources will greatly assist Golden Spread in

directors added an Equity Stabilization Charge (ESC) to

controlling power costs for its Members in a dynamic

Golden Spread’s wholesale rate in January 2011. This

electric marketplace.

new element of the rate assures that Golden Spread can

	The average rate charged to Members in 2010 was

maintain earnings at a level that will support high credit
ratings, which in turn will assure access to the capital
markets on favorable terms.
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ratio of 35 to 40 percent as a long-term target. The ESC

$62.82/MWh. This represented an increase from the
2009 average rate of $51.34/MWh, but was well below
the 2008 average of $81.95/MWh. In 2010, we saw

	In February 2010, Fitch Ratings updated its ratings

a $3.50/MWh increase in the average fuel price to

on Golden Spread’s senior secured debt, reaffirming

Members after seeing a $20/MWh decline in fuel cost in

the A-rating and changing the outlook from stable to

2009 from 2008 levels.

© Siemens Energy Inc.

S umm a r y

2010 was a

	If 2009 was a year of transition, 2010 was a year of
implementation. Inspired by the past successes of Golden Spread
and its Members, its new and expanded management team

year of

undertook innovative actions to move Golden Spread forward during

implementation

construction contract negotiations and commenced construction

changing and challenging times. Golden Spread took significant steps
to bring Fort Concho Gas Storage to commercial operation, finalized
of Antelope Station, acquired and commenced construction of the
Golden Spread Panhandle Wind Ranch, initiated negotiations to
acquire Denver City Energy Associates and doubled its staff and
associated office space, all while maintaining a strong financial
condition. It was an extraordinary year.

Patronage & Contributed
Capital Distributions

Equity/Capitalization

Debt Service Coverage (DSC) Ratio

(in Millions of Dollars)
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Golden Spread has reduced its patronage capital refund
policy in 2010 to maintain target equity ratios while
undertaking a $1.7 billion capital expansion program.
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b o a r d hi s t o r y
As Golden Spread faces new and continuing
challenges, we are fortunate to have a board of
directors elected by and from our Members. Our
Directors understand the need to keep Golden Spread
financially strong and forward-looking, while also
retaining a bedrock commitment to core cooperative
principles. It is this balance among our board of
directors that makes Golden Spread so much more than
just another electric utility.

22

© Siemens Energy Inc.

G o l d e n S p r e a d E l e c t r i c C o o p e r at i v e , i n c .

Board of directors

James Driver
Chairman of the Board

Stan McClendon
Vice Chairman of the Board

Steven R. Louder, P.E.
Secretary/Treasurer of the Board

Director since 2003
South Plains Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
Executive Vice President
and General Manager

Director since 1985
Greenbelt Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
Executive Vice President
and General Manager

Director since 1992
Deaf Smith Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
President and General Manager

James (Jim) W. Batton

Roger Bryan

Vick Christian

Director since 2010
Greenbelt Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
Chairman of the Board

Director since 2003
Coleman County Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
President of the Board

Director since 2009
Deaf Smith Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
Director

Earl Brown

Fredda Buckner

Director since 2003
Lyntegar Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
President of the Board

Director since 2004
Big Country Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
CEO and General Manager
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Jeff Copeland

Steve Gee

Gaylord Groce

Director since 2005
Concho Valley Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
President of the Board

Director since 2010
Swisher Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
Executive Vice President
and General Manager

Director since 2006
Lighthouse Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
President of the Board

Billy C. Harbin

Greg Henley

Director since 1987
Lighthouse Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
Executive Vice President
and General Manager

Director since 2009
Lyntegar Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
General Manager

Larry Hodges

Tommy Joines

Kelly Lankford

Director since 1985
Tri-County Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
Director

Director since 1985
South Plains Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
President of the Board

Director since 2008
Concho Valley Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
Executive Vice President
and CEO

Randy Mahannah, P.E.

David Marricle

Director since 2001
North Plains Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
General Manager

Director since 2002
Bailey County Electric
Cooperative Association, Inc.,
President and CEO

Jack L. Perkins

Jimie Reed

Director since 1986
Tri-County Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
CEO

Director since 2001
Swisher Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
Director

Darryl Schriver

David D. Sell, C.P.A.

Larry Sloan

Director since 2003
Taylor Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
General Manager and CEO

Director since 1986
North Plains Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
Secretary/Treasurer
of the Board

Director since 2003
Taylor Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
Director

Darrell Stephens

Delbert Smith

Director since 2000
Bailey County Electric
Cooperative Association, Inc.,
Chairman of the Board

Director since 1984
Lamb County Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
CEO and General Manager

Jim Steward

Jimmy Stokes

Brent E. Wheeler

Director since 2003
Lamb County Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
Director

Director since 1998
Rita Blanca Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
Secretary/Treasurer
of the Board

Director since 2008
Rita Blanca Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
CEO and General Manager

William (Buff) Whitten

Carl Williams

Director since 2003
Southwest Texas Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
General Manager

Director since 1997
Big Country Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
President of the Board

Steve Williams

Roland Witt

Director since 2003
Southwest Texas Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
President of the Board

Director since 2003
Coleman County Electric
Cooperative, Inc.,
General Manager
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I N M E M OR I a M
Alfred Louis Lloyd
(1930-2011)

Louis Lloyd served on the
board of directors of Lighthouse
Electric Cooperative in
Floydada for 30 years, including
20 years as board president.
He served on the board of
directors of Golden Spread
Electric Cooperative for 20
years.

D I RECTORS ’
M E M OR I AL
SC H OLARS H I P
Formed in memory of the individuals who were
dedicated to the development and advancement of
rural electrification for the benefit of their MemberConsumers, the Scholarship Fund provides financial
assistance to electric cooperative family members
seeking a college or university education. The
scholarship is available to an entering freshman
college or university student who is a Member,
or spouse or child of a Member, or child whose
guardian is a Member of a rural electric cooperative
that is a Member (owner) of Golden Spread. The
scholarship is a $1,200 scholarship, payable $300
for each of four semesters through the sophomore
year. Four new scholarships are awarded each
year to qualifying scholars enrolled as full-time
students in an accredited college or university in
Texas or Oklahoma. Eight students received a total
of $3,000 in scholarship funds in 2010. More than
$62,000 in scholarship funds have been paid to 38
recipients since the first scholarship was awarded
in 1994. Currently, the Scholarship Fund has a
balance in excess of $128,000 and is administered
by the Opportunity Plan located in Canyon, Texas.
Golden Spread makes annual contributions to the
fund, in addition to contributions in memory of past
board members. Individual contributions provide
additional capital for the Scholarship Fund.
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o ffi c e r s a n d c o mmi t t e e s
G OLDEN S PREAD O F F ICER S
James Driver – Chairman and President of the Board
Stan McClendon – Vice Chairman and Vice President of the Board
Steven R. Louder – Secretary/Treasurer of the Board
Mark W. Schwirtz – President and General Manager
	Carrie Clark – Assistant Secretary
Jacqueline Humphrey – Assistant Treasurer, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
	Randy Allison – Vice President of Production
Mike Wise – Vice President of Transmission and Operations
E X EC U TIVE CO M M ITTEE
James Driver
Stan McClendon	Roland Witt
Steven R. Louder	Carl Williams
A U DIT CO M M ITTEE
	David Sell, C.P.A. – Chairman
Gaylord Groce
Greg Henley	Darryl Schriver
Billy C. Harbin
Kelly Lankford
F INANCE CO M M ITTEE
	Randy Mahannah – Chairman		
Steven R. Louder
Jack Perkins	Delbert Smith
	David Marricle
Jimie Reed
William (Buff) Whitten
G OVERN M ENT RELATION S CO M M ITTEE
Steve Williams – Chairman
	Earl Brown
Stan McClendon
	Roger Bryan
Jimmy Stokes

Brent Wheeler

POLIC Y CO M M ITTEE
Fredda Buckner – Chairman
James (Jim) Batton	Larry Sloan	Roland Witt
	Larry Hodges

Jim Steward

OPERATION S CO M M ITTEE
Steve Gee – Chairman
	Vick Christian	Tommy Joines	Carl Williams
Jeff Copeland	Darrell Stephens
T H E H I G H G RO U ND O F TE X A S – DIRECTOR REPRE S ENTATIVE
Brent Wheeler
T H E OPPORT U NIT Y PLAN – DIRECTOR REPRE S ENTATIVE
	David Marricle
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Jacqueline Humphrey,
C.P.A.

Mark W. Schwirtz

President and
General Manager

Carrie Clark, Esq.

Assistant General Counsel

Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
Mike Wise

Randy Allison, P.E.

VP Transmission and
Operations

Vice President
Production
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TEA M M E M BERS
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D’Ann Allen

Dick Baker

Francine Brons

Rita Cain

Derek Dowden

Administrative Assistant

SCADA Technician

Associate System
Administrator

Executive Assistant

SCADA Tech I

Gail Eichelmann

Chesna Foster

Melody Gillis, C.P.A.

Kari Hollandsworth

Doug Johnson

Senior Billing Analyst

Senior Accountant

Controller

Energy Analyst

Contract Administrator

Lloyd Kolb

Chris Lang

Wallace Lester

Ty McKinney

Shane McMinn, P.E.

Manager
Trans and Regulatory Policy

Oper Reliability Comp Admin

Site Supervisor
O & G Operations

Data Analyst

Manager
Operations

Matt Moore

Anthony Perez

Jeff Pippin

Mark Reinart

Stacy Sanning, P.E.

Manager
Market Operations

Project Manager

Production Asset Manager

Engineering Tech I

Project Manager

Larry Shields

Roxann Stewart

Cody Webb

Steve Wiegand, C.P. A.

Cassie Williams

Billing Supervisor

Senior Accountant

Network Administrator
Team Lead

Manager
Accounting Services

Legal Assistant

Carl N. Stover, P.E.

Robert A. O’Neil, Esq.

Engineering Consultant
C. H. Guernsey & Company,
Chairman of the Board

General Counsel
Miller, Balis and O’Neil, P.C.,
Founding Principal

29

wh a t i s a c o o p e r a t iv e ?
	Electric cooperatives differ in both form and function from other types of electric utilities.
Electric coops are owned by their members. Unlike investor-owned utilities, electric coops
are private, not-for-profit entities. Cooperatives have a proven track record spanning many
years and offer consumers the opportunity to own and provide electricity for themselves.
	The unique mindset of coops has grown out of the seven cooperative principles, which
are outlined below. As energy markets turn from cost-based regulated utilities to diverse
market-based independent power producers and marketers, coops provide a beneficial and
reliable alternative for consumers. Cooperatives globally follow the same seven principles
and values, adopted by the International Cooperative Alliance in 1995.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
30

Voluntary and Open Membership
Cooperatives are voluntary organizations, open to all people able to use its services and
willing to accept the responsibilities of membership, without gender, social, racial, political
or religious discrimination.
Democratic Member Control
Cooperatives are democratic organizations controlled by their members – those who
buy the goods or use the services of the cooperative – who actively participate in setting
policies and making decisions.
Members’ Economic Participation
Members contribute equally to, and democratically control, the capital of the cooperative.
This benefits members in proportion to the business they conduct with the cooperative
rather than on the capital invested.
Autonomy and Independence
Cooperatives are autonomous organizations controlled by their members. If the coop
enters into agreements with other organizations or raises capital from external sources, it is
done so based on terms that ensure democratic control by the members and maintains the
cooperative’s autonomy.
Education, Training and Information
Cooperatives provide education and training for members, elected representatives, managers
and employees so they can contribute effectively to the development of their cooperative.
Members also inform the general public about the nature and benefits of cooperatives.
Cooperation among Cooperatives
Cooperatives serve their members most effectively and strengthen the cooperative
movement by working together through local, national, regional and international structures.
Concern for Community
While focusing on member needs, cooperatives work for the sustainable development of
communities through policies and programs accepted by the members.
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Management’s Discussion a nd An a lysis
Management’s Discussion and Analysis provides an overview
of the consolidated financial condition and results of operations
of Golden Spread Electric Cooperative, Inc. (Golden Spread)
and its wholly-owned operating affiliates, GS Electric Generating
Cooperative, Inc. (GSEGC), Yoakum Electric Generating
Cooperative, Inc. (YEGC), Golden Spread Panhandle Wind
Ranch, LLC (GS PWR) and Fort Concho Gas Storage, Inc. (FCGS),
collectively referred to as “the Cooperative.” GSEGC and YEGC
hold generating assets that supply energy to Golden Spread under
long-term power sales contracts. In 2009, Oklaunion Electric
Generating Cooperative, Inc., one of Golden Spread’s non-operating
affiliates, was renamed Antelope Electric Generating Cooperative,
Inc. (AEGC). AEGC will own Antelope Station, a 168 MW
generating plant near Abernathy, Texas, currently under construction
by Golden Spread. Antelope Station initially will include eighteen
9.3 MW quick-start generating units and is expected to achieve
commercial operation by June 2011. Upon commercial operation,
Antelope Station will be transferred to AEGC and Golden Spread
will purchase all the capacity and energy from AEGC under a
long-term power sales contract. In September 2010, Golden Spread
purchased a for-profit entity that held the rights to develop a 78.2
MW wind generation project in the Texas Panhandle, and re-named
the entity Golden Spread Panhandle Wind Ranch, LLC. The
Panhandle Wind Ranch is currently under construction by GS PWR
and is expected to achieve commercial operation in September
2011. GS PWR will sell all the capacity and energy to Golden
Spread under a long-term power supply agreement.

Under Golden Spread’s business model, wholly-owned
affiliates hold substantially all generation resources. Golden Spread
purchases power output from its affiliates under wholesale power
contracts that provide for payment of all affiliate operating costs plus
a capacity charge that produces a Debt Service Coverage (DSC)
ratio of not less than 1.5 times. These affiliate power purchase costs
are included in the Member wholesale rate and result in margins
equivalent to the capacity costs charged by the affiliates, net of
associated interest and depreciation expense. As Golden Spread
increases its resource base of affiliate-owned generation, net
margins will increase through the additional margins created by the
capacity charges Golden Spread pays to these affiliates.

	In 2010, the Cooperative embarked on a 10-year approximately
$1.7 billion construction program that will add 1,335 megawatts
of capacity to its current portfolio of almost 800 megawatts
of owned or controlled generation resources. The planned
construction projects will provide the additional capacity needed
to replace purchase power agreements and to meet the growing
energy demand of Golden Spread’s 16 Members and their
Member-Consumers. Golden Spreads’ third party purchase power
agreements, totaling approximately 750 megawatts, will terminate
over the next 10 years.

	Although much of the equity Golden Spread has accumulated
over the past 10 years has resulted from margins from nonmember
sales, those margins have declined substantially over the past two
years. Golden Spread expects that, for the near term, gas prices and
market conditions will result in generally lower market prices and
a continuation of the reduced level of nonmember sales margins,
but also will contribute to lower Member power costs. To assure
that Golden Spread can continue to generate cash and equity at
levels necessary to maintain its target financial ratios, retain high
investment ratings (“A” or better from the three main credit rating
agencies), and support its planned capital expansion, the Golden
Spread board acted in 2009 to change the Member rate to include
an Equity Stabilization Charge (ESC) to generate margins needed
to supplement equity from other sources. This change became
effective January 1, 2010. To the extent nonmember sales margins
and other sources of net margins are not sufficient to assure
maintenance of targeted financial ratios, Golden Spread can make
up any shortfall by invoking this new rate provision. In 2010, this
new rate provision contributed $10.2 million in additional margins.

	In the last 10 years, Golden Spread accumulated almost $300
million in additional equity and made more than $50.8 million in
patronage capital retirements to its Members. At December 31,
2010, Golden Spread had patronage and contributed capital of
almost $266 million. This equity base is the financial foundation
that will support the projected $1.7 billion generation expansion
program over the next 10 years.

	Taking into account all potential sources of income, Golden
Spread’s financial forecast reflects annual net margins of not less
than $30.7 million and, over the next 10 years, Golden Spread is
forecasting average net margins of more than $45 million annually.
Although substantial debt capital will be required to finance the
generation expansion plan, the Cooperative expects to finance no
more than 80 percent of the cost of the generation projects. With

	The matters discussed in Management’s Discussion and Analysis
contain forward-looking statements that are based on estimates,
forecasts, and assumptions involving risks and uncertainties
that could cause actual results or outcomes to differ from those
expressed in those statements. Any forward-looking statements are
based on information as of the date of this report.

Overview
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	In 2010, the generation expansion program began with the start
of construction of Antelope Station. This 168 megawatt project of
quick-start generators which includes a new 10 mile gas pipeline
and fuel header system is expected to be completed before the
summer of 2011 at a total net cost of approximately $185 million.
At December 31, 2010, approximately $151 million was included
in Construction-Work-In-Progress (CWIP) related to this project.
Also in 2010, the Cooperative commenced construction of a
78.2 megawatt wind ranch that is expected to be completed in
September 2011 at a total net cost of approximately $115 million.
(This project qualifies for ARRA funds that will reimburse the
Cooperative for 30 percent of the qualifying cost of the project.)
At December 31, 2010, approximately $93 million was included in
CWIP related to this project.

the financing plan and targeted DSC ratio of 1.5, Golden Spread’s
financial forecast predicts that the equity/capitalization ratio will
remain in the 35-40 percent range throughout this major capital
expansion program.

Results of Operations
Sales
Sales are summarized in the following table:
Summary of Sales and Revenues
				
Years Ended December 31
				
2010
2009
2008
Operating Revenues ($ in 000’s)				
Member Sales
$ 332,564 $ 307,162 $ 433,812
	Nonmember Sales		 60,027		 35,453		 165,602
	Other
4,336
3,026
1,802
Total Operating Revenues
$ 396,927 $ 345,641 $ 601,216
				
Megawatt-Hour Sales (MWhs in 000’s)						
SPP Member Sales		
4,227		
4,493 		
	ERCOT Member Sales
1,226
1,190
Total Member Sales		
5,453 		
5,683 		
Nonmember Sales
1,356 		
973
Total MWh Sales
6,809
6,656

4,351
1,162
5,513
2,090
7,603

Average Sales Price Per Megawatt-Hour					
Member ($/MWh)
$
62.82 $ 51.34 $
				

81.95

Nonmember ($/MWh)
				

79.23

$

41.90

$

36.54 $

Higher base rates to members, due to the tariff changes and the
addition of the ESC in 2010, and slightly higher fuel prices, along
with an increase in nonmember sales resulted in a 14.8 percent
increase in operating revenues in 2010 as compared to 2009. The
42.5 percent decline in operating revenues in 2009 resulted from
sharply lower fuel prices and a significant reduction in sales to
nonmembers, partly offset by a slight increase in energy sales to
Members. Fuel prices averaged $23.41/MWh in 2010, which is
slightly higher than the fuel price in 2009 of $19.92/MWh, but it
is 44 percent lower than the 2008 price of $41.80/MWh. These
average fuel prices compare to the changes in natural gas prices
which averaged $4.34/MMBtu in 2010, compared to $3.63 in 2009
and $7.34 in 2008. (Average natural gas prices represent the annual
average natural gas prices/MMBtu delivered to Mustang Station.)
	The higher average selling price to Members of $81.95 in
2008 was due to the high fuel prices. The average rate declined
substantially to $51.34 in 2009 due to the significant decline
in fuel prices, while the 2010 average price of $62.82 was due
primarily to the increase in base rates due to the addition of the
ESC and generally higher fixed costs from purchased power, along
with a small increase in fuel prices.
	Total megawatt-hour sales rose slightly in 2010 as compared
to 2009 but remained substantially less than the record level of
7.6 million MWh sales in 2008. The record volume of megawatthour sales in 2008 resulted from a 21.6 percent increase in sales
to Members over 2008 levels and sales to nonmembers, which
were more than 2 million MWh. The increase in Member sales in

2009 contributed to a decline in nonmember sales for the same
period. The decreased Member sales in 2010 were due to a cool
wet spring which reduced the irrigation sales during that time. The
summer of 2010, along with 2009 and 2008, were characterized
by hot and dry weather conditions, resulting in increased irrigation
load, particularly in the Southwest Power Pool (SPP) region.
Irrigation sales represented 24-30 percent of megawatt-hour sales
to Members in 2010, 2009 and 2008. Strong economic conditions
in the Members’ service territories also contributed to the strong
level of Member sales in these periods.
	Energy sales to nonmembers increased almost 40 percent in
2010 as compared to 2009. The low level of sales to nonmembers
in 2009 was attributable to dedication of Mustang Station to serve
Member loads (because that resource provided the lowest cost of
energy throughout a substantial portion of 2009) and a reduced
need for Mustang Station surplus energy by Southwestern Public
Service Company due to the addition of a new combined-cycle
resource to the SPS power supply portfolio. Beginning in late
2008, nonmember sales primarily were made into the Energy
Imbalance Service Market (EIS Market) operated by the SPP. Lower
levels of nonmember sales margins are expected in the future
unless there is an increase in area loads, higher natural gas prices
or changed market conditions. The higher volume of nonmember
sales in 2010 and 2008 contributed to the increased net margins in
those years, as explained below.

Net Margins
	Net margins of $47.1 million in 2010 were the third highest in
Golden Spread’s history. Net margins in 2010 were significantly
higher than 2009 net margins of almost $24.5 million. The higher
level of net margins in 2010 was due to higher nonmember
margins, the additional margins of $10.2 million created by the
addition of the ESC to Member rates, and a $6 million gain on the
sale of a GE D11 steam turbine-generator that Golden Spread had
been holding in storage for future use. Net margins in 2009 had
declined substantially due to the reduced level of margins from
nonmember sales. In 2008, net margins had increased to a record
high, exceeding by more than $3.6 million the net margins earned
in 2007, the previous record year. Net margins of almost $24.5
million in 2009 were comparable to the level of net margins in
2006, which were $25.2 million and not significantly less than the
average net margins of $27.6 million that were achieved during the
period from 2000 through 2010. A comparison of the components
of net margins is set forth in the following table:

Nonmember Sales
$
Affiliate Capacity Charges, Net		
ESC/Administrative Charge		
Other
Net
Margins
$
				

Years Ended December 31
2010
2009
2008
13,277 $ 8,562 $ 34,801
14,234		 12,443		 12,385
10,261		 2,125		 2,531
9,358
1,342
2,945
47,130 $ 24,472 $ 52,662

	As explained previously, the high levels of nonmember sales
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margins in 2008 were attributable to higher levels in the volume
of nonmember sales from prior years and high natural gas prices
of $7.34/MMBtu. Nonmember sales margins in 2009 were
attributable primarily to Golden Spread’s participation in the SPP
EIS Market which became effective on February 1, 2007. Golden
Spread sells power into the EIS Market when prices are above its
incremental production cost. The EIS Market also allows Golden
Spread to purchase energy when market prices are below its
decremental cost of energy. Low cost EIS Market purchases also
contributed to the lower average sales prices to Members of
approximately $51 in 2009 and $63 in 2010.
	As mentioned previously, Golden Spread’s business model
utilizes wholly-owned affiliates to hold substantially all generation
assets. Wholesale power contracts with the affiliates provide for
the payment of all operating costs and a capacity charge that
produces a Debt Service Coverage (DSC) ratio of not less than 1.5.
The affiliate capacity charges generate margins which contribute
to Golden Spread net margins. Margins earned from affiliate
capacity charges increased to $14.2 million in 2010 compared to
$12.4 million in 2009 and 2008. The increase is due to the annual
increase in the contract capacity rates charged by Golden Spread’s
affiliates.
	Additional margins were generated by the Equity Stabilization
Charge in 2010 compared to the Administrative Charge that was
billed as a component of the Golden Spread Member wholesale
rate in 2009 and 2008. In 2009, the Board approved changes to
the Member wholesale rate which eliminated the Administrative
Charge in favor of new provisions that provide for the recovery
of all administrative costs and an ESC that provides for margins
necessary to maintain Golden Spread’s targeted liquidity and
financial ratios, including DSC, equity as a percentage of total
capitalization, and other key ratios that affect the confidence of
lenders and rating agencies. The Administrative Charge, of up to
$1/MWh, was applied to all Member MWhs sold.
	In 2009 and 2008, the Administrative Charge was $0.64/MWh
and $0.76/MWh, respectively. In 2009 the contribution to net
margins provided by the Administrative Charge declined due to the
reduced rate of $0.64/MWh and higher administrative expenses.
	Other sources of margins in 2010 include the $6.2 million
gain from the sale of the GE D11 steam turbine-generator and
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$3.2 million in proceeds from insurance due to lost profits during
Mustang Station outages in 2006 and 2007. The remainder of this
amount is interest earned on cash balances. Interest income has
declined in all three years due to a combination of much lower
interest rates and a reduction in cash balances resulting from
Golden Spread’s purchase of a gas storage facility in 2008 and
cash expenditures related to development of Antelope Station and
the Golden Spread Panhandle Wind Ranch, both of which are
expected to be completed in 2011.

Operating Expenses
Operating expenses are summarized in the table below:
Years Ended December 31
2010
2009
2008
Fuel and Purchased Power
$ 312,629		$ 270,840 		 $ 507,732
Plant Operations and Management		
3,841 			
3,553 			
3,367
Plant Maintenance		
2,984			
4,637			
3,234
Administrative and General		 14,619			 14,814			 14,605
Depreciation		
8,677			
8,448			
8,105
Taxes Other Than Income		
1,960			
2,123			
1,507
Other
4,198 		
7,150
2,346
	Total
$ 348,908		
		$ 311,565				 $ 540,896
		

	The changes in fuel and purchased power costs are directly
related to fuel costs and the volume of capacity and energy
purchased in each period. The average cost of fuel and purchased
power per MWh was $45.91 in 2010, $40.70 in 2009 and
$65.42 in 2008. These changes are comparable to the changes in
average selling prices per MWh to Members of $62.82 in 2010,
$51.34 in 2009 and $81.95 in 2008. The 2010 average cost per
MWh increased 13 percent as compared to 2009 due to the
addition of the ESC. The average cost per MWh declined almost
38 percent in 2009 due almost entirely to lower fuel prices. The
difference between the average price per MWh sold to Members
and the average cost of fuel and purchased power per MWh has
remained fairly constant at $13-$15 per MWh. This difference – or
excess of average selling price to Members over the average cost
of fuel and purchased power per MWh – represents the recovery
of all other expenses of operations and provides for the Members’
contribution to net margins, which were $24.5 million in 2010,
$14.6 million in 2009 and $14.9 million in 2008.

	Plant maintenance and maintenance services were lower in 2010
and 2008 compared to 2009 due to less scheduled maintenance
and fewer unplanned outages. Other operating expense in 2009
includes a $5 million one-time charge associated with the writeoff of capitalized costs associated with the investigation of Golden
Spread’s participation as an owner in a proposed expansion of
Sunflower Electric Power Corporation’s Holcomb generating station.
Golden Spread’s capital expansion plan had included acquisition of
a 400 MW interest in a new coal-fired generating unit at Holcomb.
Legal challenges have resulted in an indefinite delay of that project
and a reduction in its proposed size. If the project does proceed,
any participation by Golden Spread is expected to be limited to
100-150 MWs. As a result of these developments, Golden Spread
determined in 2009 that it was appropriate to write-off a significant
portion of capitalized development costs associated with this project.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
At December 31, 2010 and 2009, Golden Spread had
available cash and investments of approximately $35 million
and $96 million, respectively. In addition to the available cash,
Golden Spread, through its wholly-owned affiliate GSEGC, had
over $5 million in reserve funds (i.e., debt service reserve fund
and maintenance reserve funds) and $3.5 million in a required
cash working capital deposit, all of which have been excluded
from the available cash balances. Golden Spread also has lines
of credit totaling $275 million, (for the financing of its current
construction program and for general liquidity needs) of which $15
million is reserved in connection with the term loan associated
with Mustang Station. At December 31, 2010, there was $107.9
million in outstanding borrowings under these credit facilities
and $2 million had been used to secure an irrevocable letter
of credit required by a fuel supplier. There are no restrictions,
limitations or pledges of cash or any other assets, other than
as separately identified on the financial statements and in the
footnotes. In addition to the cash balances maintained at each
year-end, Golden Spread also had additional borrowing capability
of more than $60 million under its indenture due to the addition
of assets that include Mustang Station Unit 5 (a 152 MW GE 7FA
combustion turbine-generator that was placed in service in 2007)
and an additional GE 7FA combustion turbine-generator which is
in storage pending future project development. These assets were
financed through cash generated from operations and constitute
bondable additions under the Golden Spread indenture.

The decrease in available cash and increase in credit line
borrowings from 2009 to 2010 are due primarily to the two on-going
construction projects, the Antelope Project and the Golden Spread
Panhandle Wind Ranch.
	Recognizing the need for both equity and liquidity to meet the
Cooperative’s planned construction program, effective January 1,
2010, the board changed the patronage capital retirement policy
in effect for 2008 and 2009 to reduce annual retirements that had
represented 8.5 percent of year-end equity. This resulted in a 2010
payment of $4.4 million and a 2011 payment of approximately $5.3
million of patronage capital distributions to the Members, amounts
approximating 2 percent of the prior year-end equity balances.
	Over the next 10 years, Golden Spread plans to add
approximately 1,300 MW of new generation resources to its power
supply portfolio. In 2011, Golden Spread will have 168 MWs
of quick-start generation and 78.2 MWs of wind generation in
commercial operation. These planned new resources will be used
to serve load growth, to replace expiring wholesale power contracts
and to reduce exposure to volatile wholesale market pricing. Golden
Spread continues to develop a power supply portfolio that includes
a mix of owned generation and purchased power that provides
energy from a combination of renewable, gas-fired and coal-fired
resources to supply its Members with reliable and reasonably
priced power.
Golden Spread maintains target financial ratios that are deemed
appropriate to ensure adequate liquidity, equity, and debt service
coverage ratios to support the additional debt that will be needed
to fund new generating resources. The target ratios influence
management and the board of directors in establishing annual
budgets, setting rates, and determining the level of patronage capital
retirements to Members. Golden Spread’s financial policies are
designed to maintain capital and liquidity sufficient to provide for
the financing of all future projects with an appropriate mix of debt
and equity, while maintaining strong financial ratios.
	In February 2010, Fitch Ratings updated its rating on Golden
Spread’s senior secured debt reaffirming the A- rating and changing
the outlook to positive from stable. In March 2011, Standard &
Poor’s reaffirmed its general corporate credit rating of A. In August
2010, Moody’s Investor Services reaffirmed its general corporate
credit rating of A3 (equivalent to an A2 on a senior secured basis).
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G o l d e n S p r e a d E l e c t r i c C o o p e r at i v e , i n c .

Independent auditors’ repor t

Board of Directors
Golden Spread Electric Cooperative, Inc. and Affiliates
Amarillo, Texas
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Golden Spread Electric Cooperative,
Inc. and Affiliates as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated statements of income,
equity and cash flows for the years then ended. In addition, we have audited the consolidated statements
of income, equity, and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2008. These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of Golden Spread’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Golden Spread Electric Cooperative, Inc. and Affiliates as of December
31, 2010 and 2009, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then
ended, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2008, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Bolinger, Segars, Gilbert & Moss, L.L.P.
Certified Public Accountants
May 3, 2011
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consolidated bal a nce shee t s
				

ASSETS	

December 31

2010

2009

UTILITY PLANT AT COST				
	Electric Plant in Service
$ 262,711,556
$ 259,101,336
	Construction Work in Progress
244,062,692
18,974,143
	Less: Accumulated Provision for Depreciation
70,532,093
61,942,894
		Total Utility Plant at Cost
$ 436,242,155
$ 216,132,585
					
OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS - AT COST OR STATED VALUE 					
	Investments in Associated Organizations
$ 2,132,756
$ 2,021,479
	Plant Held for Future Use
20,298,093
20,113,807
	Other Property
25,634,396		
9,247,482
	Reserve Funds
6,401,371
5,383,372
		Total Other Property and Investments – At Cost or Stated Value
$ 54,466,616
$ 36,766,140
					
CURRENT ASSETS				
	Cash
$ 16,079,927
$ 27,038,415
	Temporary Cash Investments
19,002,401		 63,056,112
Special Deposits
3,500,000		
3,500,000
Medium Term Notes
-		
6,000,000
	Accounts Receivable
42,373,823		 37,301,744
	Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets
6,679,377
6,808,532
Total Current Assets
$ 87,635,528
$ 143,704,803
					
OTHER ASSETS				
	Deferred Charges
$ 2,846,604
$ 14,675,831
	Debt Issuance Costs (Net of accumulated amortization of
2,528,397		
2,787,550
		 $2,622,439 in 2010 and $2,363,285 in 2009)
	Total Other Assets
$ 5,375,001
$ 17,463,381
					
		
$ 583,719,300
$ 414,066,909
			TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES
EQUITIES 				
	Patronage Capital
$ 252,612,612
$ 209,645,985
	Contributed Capital
13,063,020		 13,329,613
	Accumulated Comprehensive Income (Loss)
(14,250,000)
(13,000,000)
Total Equities
$ 251,425,632
$ 209,975,598
					
LONG-TERM DEBT				
Mortgage Notes Less Current Maturities
$ 133,307,671
$ 141,114,507
					
CURRENT LIABILITIES				
	Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt
$ 7,806,550
$ 7,177,262
	Notes Payable
107,922,257
3,289,008
	Accounts Payable
58,005,685		 33,389,928
	Amounts Due Members
5,578,119		
1,604,474
	Other Accrued Expenses
3,970,703
3,140,848
Total Current Liabilities
$ 183,283,314
$ 48,601,520
					
DEFERRED CREDITS
$ 15,702,683
$ 14,375,284
					
TOTAL EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES
$ 583,719,300
$ 414,066,909
			
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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consolidated INCOME STATEMENTS
			
	Y e a r s E n d e d D e c e m b e r 3 1

			
2010
2009
2008
OPERATING REVENUES							
Wholesale Power Sales
$ 392,591,260
$ 342,615,074
$ 599,414,174
	Other Operating Revenues
4,335,679
3,025,884
1,802,223
		Total Operating Revenues
$ 396,926,939
$ 345,640,958
$ 601,216,397
								
OPERATING EXPENSES						
	Purchased Power
$ 261,149,758
$ 218,618,947
$ 398,656,462
Fuel Expense		 25,063,493 		 26,984,765		 89,366,668
	Transmission Expense
26,416,329		 25,236,675		 19,709,365
	Other Power Supply Expense		
1,050,750		
774,964		
476,692
	Plant Operations and Management		
3,840,757		
3,553,145		
3,367,437
	Plant Maintenance and Maintenance Services		
2,983,870		
4,636,686		
3,233,704
	Transmission Operations & Maintenance		
1,218,999		
732,511		
492,618
	Other Operating Expense		
1,928,377		
5,641,942		
1,375,781
	Administrative and General		 14,619,174		 14,813,726		 14,604,898
	Depreciation 		
8,676,698		
8,447,821		
8,105,462
	Taxes Other than Income Taxes
1,959,637
2,123,486
1,507,174
		Total Operating Expenses
$ 348,907,842
$ 311,564,668
$ 540,896,261
						
OPERATING MARGINS - 							
BEFORE FIXED CHARGES
$ 48,019,097
$ 34,076,290
$ 60,320,136
								
FIXED CHARGES						
	Interest on Short-Term Borrowings
$
1,530,393
$
186,816
$
183,194
	Interest on Long-Term Debt
10,089,815		 10,499,738		 10,160,989
	Allowance for Borrowed Funds Used
		During Construction
(4,137,591)		
- 		
	Amortization of Debt Issuance Costs
259,154
259,154
259,154
		Total Fixed Charges
$
7,741,771
$ 10,945,708
$ 10,603,337
								
OPERATING MARGINS - 							
AFTER FIXED CHARGES
$ 40,277,326
$ 23,130,582
$ 49,716,799
							
NON-OPERATING MARGINS						
	Interest and Capital Credit Income
$
505,258
$ 1,182,539
$
2,777,126
Gain on Disposition of Property
6,155,471		
- 		
	Other Income
192,042
159,330
168,317
		Total Non-Operating Margins
$
6,852,771
$ 1,341,869
$
2,945,443
								
NET
$ 47,130,097
$ 24,472,451
$ 52,662,242
			MARGINS
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See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

consolidated STATEMENTS of c a sh flows
					

Years Ended December 31

			
2010
		
2009
			
2008
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES							
Net Margins
$
47,130,097
$ 24,472,451		
$ 52,662,242
	Adjustments to Reconcile Net Margins to					
	Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities						
			Depreciation and Amortization
8,930,018			
8,768,651			
8,364,617
			 Gain on Disposition of Property
(6,155,471)		
- 			
			Capital Credits
(201,660)		
(125,455 )		
(207,036 )
			Deferred Charges
(15,302)		
3,163,905			 (4,225,105 )
			Deferred Credits
77,399			
(572,758 )		
(50,717 )
			Accounts Receivable
(12,895,359)		
327,884			
4,263,665
			 Materials and Supplies
(63,129)		
(9,589 )		
(88,972 )
			Prepayments and Other Current Assets
(2,122,167)		
(250,918 )		
(270,333 )
			Payables and Accrued Expenses
22,376,657			 (4,037,527 )		
1,707,476
			Amounts Due to Members
3,973,645		
(14,324,639 )
14,467,434
			
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $
61,034,728		
$ 17,412,005 		
$ 76,623,271		
							
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES						
	Additions to Utility Plant
$ (219,739,099)
$ (20,578,849 )
$ (5,074,276 )
	Additions to Other Property & Plant Held
		 for Future Use 		
(12,405,849)		
- 		
(8,134,563 )
	Proceeds from Disposition of Property
18,000,000			
- 			
	Net Activity in Medium Term Notes
6,000,000			 10,000,000			 (10,000,000 )
	Investments in Associated Organizations
90,383		
3,577		
(60,276 )
		
Net Cash Provided by (Used in)
			
Investing Activities
$ (208,054,565)
$ (10,575,272 )
$ (23,269,115 )
								
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES						
	Additions to Reserve Funds
$
(1,017,999)
$
(114,958 )
$
(103,739 )
	Retirement of Patronage and Contributed Capital
(4,430,063)		 (18,000,000 )		 (15,000,000 )
	Payments on Long-Term Debt
(7,177,549)		 (5,473,518 )		 (5,046,885 )
	Net Borrowings (Repayments) – Notes Payable
104,633,249
- 		
(600,000 )		
Net Cash Provided by (Used in)
			
Financing Activities
$
92,007,638
$ (23,588,476 )
$ (20,750,624 )		
							
INCREASE(DECREASE) IN CASH
	AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
$ (55,012,199)
$ (16,751,743 )
$ 32,603,532
									
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS –
BEGINNING OF YEAR
90,094,527
106,846,270
74,242,738
									
CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS – END OF YEAR
$
35,082,328		
$ 90,094,527				
$ 106,846,270		
				
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION				
		Interest
Paid During the Year
$
16,720,381		
$
				
		Income
Taxes Paid During the Year
				

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

$

-		

$

9,884,259				
-				

$ 10,072,505
$

-

39

consolidated STATEMENTS of equit y
			
							
Accumulated
									
Comprehensive		
				
Patronage Contributed		
Income		
			
Capital
Capital
(Loss)

BALANCE
$ 162,926,320				 $ 15,914,585				 $ (9,400,000)		
				 DECEMBER 31, 2007
										
Net Margins - 2008
$ 52,662,242 		 $
- 		 $
- 		
								
Items of Comprehensive Income (Loss)								
	Change in Loss on Hedging Contracts
- 		
- 		
(10,500,000 )
								
Net Comprehensive Income (Loss)
$ 52,662,242 		 $
- 		 $ (10,500,000 )
								
Patronage & Contributed Capital Retirement
$ (13,640,170 ) $ (1,359,830 ) $
- 		

Total

$ 169,440,905
$ 52,662,242

(10,500,000)
$ 42,162,242
$ (15,000,000)

								
BALANCE
$ 201,948,392				 $ 14,554,755				 $ (19,900,000)		 $ 196,603,147
				 DECEMBER 31, 2008

											
Net Margins - 2009
$ 24,472,451 		 $
- 		 $
								
Items of Comprehensive Income (Loss)								
	Change in Loss on Hedging Contracts
- 		
- 		
								
Net Comprehensive Income (Loss)
$ 24,472,451 		 $
- 		 $
								
Patronage & Contributed Capital Retirement
$ (16,774,858 ) $ (1,225,142 ) $

- 		 $ 24,472,451

6,900,000 		

6,900,000

6,900,000 		 $ 31,372,451
- 		 $ (18,000,000)

							
BALANCE
$ 209,645,985				 $ 13,329,613				 $ (13,000,000)		 $ 209,975,598
				 DECEMBER 31, 2009
					
								
Net Margins - 2010
$ 47,130,097 		 $
- 		 $
								
Items of Comprehensive Income (Loss)								
	Change in Loss on Hedging Contracts
- 		
- 		
								
Net Comprehensive Income (Loss)
$ 47,130,097 		 $
- 		 $
								
Patronage & Contributed Capital Retirement
$ (4,163,470 ) $ (266,593 ) $
								
BALANCE
				 DECEMBER 31, 2010
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See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

- 		 $ 47,130,097

(1,250,000 )

(1,250,000)

(1,250,000 )

$ 45,880,097

- 		 $

(4,430,063)

$ 252,612,612				 $ 13,063,020				 $ (14,250,000)		 $ 251,425,632		

note s to consolidated fin a nci a l STATEMENTS

1.	Organization and Operations
Golden Spread Electric Cooperative, Inc. (Golden Spread) and its wholly-owned
affiliates, GS Electric Generating Cooperative, Inc. (GSEGC), Yoakum Electric
Generating Cooperative, Inc. (YEGC), Antelope Electric Generating Cooperative,
Inc. (AEGC), Fort Concho Gas Storage, Inc. (FCGS), Golden Spread Panhandle
Wind Ranch, LLC (GS PWR), and Mid-Tex Generation and Transmission Electric
Cooperative (Mid-Tex) (collectively referred to as the Cooperative) are Texas
corporations with headquarter facilities located in Amarillo, Texas.
Golden Spread’s Members are 16 rural electric distribution cooperatives that provide
service to their retail Member-Consumers in the Panhandle, South Plains and the
Edwards Plateau regions of Texas, in the Panhandle of Oklahoma, in southwestern
Kansas and a small portion of southeast Colorado. The Member loads served by
the Cooperative are located in the Southwest Power Pool (SPP) and the Electric
Reliability Council of Texas (ERCOT).
Golden Spread employs a business model whereby generation assets are held in
wholly-owned affiliates. GSEGC is a Texas cooperative corporation and owns onehalf of an undivided ownership interest in Mustang Station, an approximately 480
megawatt gas-fired combined-cycle generation station located near Denver City,
Texas. Mustang Station is jointly owned with Denver City Energy Associates, L.P.
(DCEA), an independent power producer. The operation of the plant is governed by
a Joint Operating Agreement (JOA) between the two owners. DCEA is the operating
agent for Mustang Station. Golden Spread purchases all the capacity and energy
of Mustang Station under a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with DCEA and a
separate unit power sales contract with GSEGC. (See Note 14.)
	YEGC is a Texas cooperative corporation that owns two 152 megawatt gas-fired
combustion turbine-generators (Mustang Station Units 4 and 5) that are used
primarily to serve peak load. The units are located adjacent to Mustang Station and
Golden Spread purchases all the capacity and energy of YEGC under a long-term
unit power sales contract.
	AEGC, also a Texas cooperative corporation, will commence operations upon the
transfer of Antelope Station, a generation project under construction by Golden
Spread that is located near Abernathy, Texas. Antelope Station consists of a 168
megawatt group of quick-start gas-fired generating units that are expected to achieve
commercial operation in June 2011, at which time the project will be transferred from
Golden Spread to AEGC.
	On September 30, 2010, Golden Spread purchased from affiliates of Cielo Wind
Power, LP, its 100 percent ownership interest in Wildorado Wind II, LLC, a company
that held the rights to develop a 78.2 megawatt wind generation project in Oldham
and Potter counties in the Texas Panhandle. After acquisition, Golden Spread
renamed the acquired entity as “Golden Spread Panhandle Wind Ranch” (GS PWR).
Since acquisition, the wind project has been under construction and is expected to
achieve full commercial operation in September 2011. GS PWR has elected to be
taxed as a C-corporation.
FCGS is a Texas corporation that owns a 2-bcf underground gas storage facility near
San Angelo, Texas. The site is currently undergoing renovation and is expected to be
available for use in 2012 to provide no-notice gas that can be used for the quick-start
units that will be owned by AEGC. FCGS is a taxable C-corporation.
Mid-Tex, also a Texas cooperative corporation, currently has no assets or operations,
but is expected to ultimately be used to own generation assets in Golden Spread’s
ERCOT region.
Golden Spread is subject to the jurisdiction of the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (FERC) for corporate and rate regulation related to its activities in the
SPP, and is subject to the regulation of the Public Utility Commission of Texas for
certain activities in both ERCOT and SPP. FCGS is subject to the rules and regulations
of the Texas Railroad Commission. GS PWR is subject to FERC jurisdiction.
Golden Spread is tax-exempt under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(12) as
long as 85 percent of its gross receipts (as defined under the Internal Revenue Code)
are derived from sales to Members. For each of the three years ended December 31,
2010, the 85 percent test was met. Any revenues earned in excess of costs incurred
are allocated to Members of Golden Spread and are reflected as patronage capital
equity in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. FCGS and GS PWR
were formed as taxable corporations; however, significant operations have not
commenced and, therefore, no tax liability has been incurred.

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

	The accounting records of the Cooperative are maintained in accordance with the
accounting system prescribed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission for
electric utilities.
Principles of Consolidation
		The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Golden Spread and
its wholly-owned affiliates. All intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated in consolidation.
Operating Revenues
Under the Golden Spread tariff, Golden Spread bills its Members monthly based on
estimated costs and usage. The tariff provides that there will be a reconciliation of
actual costs incurred compared to the amounts billed. Any over-or-under recovery of
costs is refunded or surcharged in the subsequent year. Unbilled revenues are accrued
for amounts that are recoverable under rate tariffs but not yet billed. Amounts billed to
members in excess of recoverable costs under rate tariffs are accrued as a reduction of
revenues and as a liability to the Members. All amounts receivable from Members are
considered to be collectible; therefore no allowance is recorded.
		Other operating revenues consist primarily of special facilities charges billed to
Members for use of transmission assets.
Depreciation
		Depreciation of utility plant is provided using straight-line depreciation rates over the
following estimated useful lives:
			Transmission Plant
			Production Plant
			 Gas Interconnection
			 General Plant

15 - 36 Years
15 - 30 Years
15 Years
5 Years

	Allowance for Borrowed Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC)
	AFUDC represents the cost of interest capitalized during the construction period. In
2010, interest of $4.1 million was capitalized as part of the costs of Antelope Station
and GS PWR, which represented an average interest rate of 5.56 percent.
	Debt Issuance Costs
		Debt issuance costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the
underlying debt.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
		For purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the Cooperative considers
cash and temporary cash investments with an original maturity of 90 days or less as
cash and cash equivalents.
Investments in Associated Organizations
		Investments in associated organizations consist primarily of Golden Spread’s
ownership interest in Alliance for Cooperative Energy Services (ACES) Power
Marketing LLC. The investment in ACES is accounted for using the cost method of
accounting. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, Golden Spread’s investment in ACES
was $587,717.
Other Property
		Other property includes land, water rights and a gas storage facility and related
assets. Also included in Other Property is a $10 million deposit for a General Electric
steam turbine-generator that is on order for delivery by December 31, 2014.
Reserve Funds
		Reserve funds include a major maintenance fund and a debt service fund invested at
CoBank that are requirements of the project financing associated with Mustang Station.
Concentrations of Credit Risk
		The service areas of the Member cooperatives are largely dependent on agriculture
and, to a lesser extent, oil and gas.
		The Cooperative maintains cash balances with various financial institutions insured
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At times cash
balances may exceed insurance coverage. The Cooperative also maintains cash
balances with two cooperative banks whose deposits are not federally insured.
Reclassifications
		Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2009 and 2008 financial statement
balances to conform to the 2010 presentation.
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Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements
		The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Uncertain Tax Positions
On January 1, 2009, the Cooperative adopted the “uncertain tax positions” provisions
of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The
primary tax positions of the Cooperative are its filing status as a tax-exempt entity and
its need to avoid exceeding a certain percentage of its income from nonmembers to
maintain its tax-exempt status. The Cooperative has determined that it is more likely
than not, that their tax positions will be sustained upon examination by the Internal
Revenue Service (IRS), or other State taxing authority and that all tax benefits are likely
to be realized upon settlement with taxing authorities.
	The Cooperative files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. The
Cooperative is no longer subject to income tax examinations by federal taxing
authorities for years before 2007.
3.

Utility Plant

	The components of a utility plant are summarized as follows:
		
December 31,
		Plant-in-Service
2010
2009
	Land
$
2,826,034
$
2,826,034
			Production Plant		
205,640,817		
205,511,387
			Transmission Plant		
52,033,140		
49,572,043
			 General Plant
2,211,564
1,191,872
			
Total Electric Plant-in-Service
$ 262,711,555
$ 259,101,336
			Construction Work in Progress
244,062,692
18,974,143
			
$ 506,774,247
$ 278,075,479
				 Total Electric Plant
	At December 31, 2010, Construction Work in Progress represented two on-going
construction projects. The Antelope Project, a 168 MW generation facility consisting
of 18 quick-start units, near Abernathy, Texas amounts to $150,731,523. The Golden
Spread Panhandle Wind Ranch, located near Wildorado, Texas, a 78.2 MW wind
power project, had incurred $93,331,169 in costs through December 31, 2010.
Special Facilities are assets that the Cooperative constructs or acquires for the
benefit of individual Members. The debt associated with Special Facilities is secured
by mortgages with National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation
(CFC) on the Special Facilities. Special Facilities are excluded from the lien of the
Trust Indenture (see Note 8) under which certain of Golden Spread’s tangible and
intangible assets are subject to the Trust Indenture’s lien. All operating costs and the
related debt service costs of Special Facilities are recovered from the Members that
benefit from the facilities.
	In 2010 and 2009, transmission facilities and substations of three Golden Spread
Members were transferred to Golden Spread under the terms of the Special Facilities
Agreements. The net book value of the assets transferred were $2,324,701 and
$2,810,666, respectively.
4.	Temporary Cash Investments
	Temporary cash investments are summarized as follows:
		
December 31,
				
2010
CFC Commercial Paper
$
7,600,234
$
	CFC Daily Fund Investment		
10,779,153		
		Other Investments
623,014
Total Temporary Cash Investments
$ 19,002,401
$
				

2009
31,466,588
31,036,061
553,463
63,056,112

	The CFC commercial paper investments are recorded at cost which approximates
fair value. The commercial paper matures during January 2011 and has interest rates
ranging from 0.235 percent-0.265 percent. The CFC daily fund investments earn
interest at a variable interest rate (0.195 percent at December 31, 2010).
5.	Plant Held for Future Use
Plant held for future use includes a General Electric 7FA gas-fired combustion turbinegenerator held by the Cooperative at original cost plus accumulated storage costs of
$20,298,093 and $20,113,807 as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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6.	Deferred Charges
	Deferred charges consist of the following:

				
Regulatory Assets
$
Steam Turbine-Generator		
		Other Charges
Total Deferred Charges
$
				

December 31
2010
2,759,675
$
-		
86,929
2,846,604
$

2009
2,496,210
11,669,940
509,681
14,675,831

	The steam turbine-generator had been held in storage and was sold in 2010 for a gain
of approximately $6 million which is included in Gain on Disposition of Property in
the accompanying financial statements.
7.

Short-Term Credit Facilities
Borrowings under short-term credit facilities are summarized as follows:

				
4.95% Borrowings under Line of Credit
				

December 31
2010
2009
$ 107,922,257
$
3,289,008

	In 2010, the Cooperative obtained a $125,000,000 unsecured committed line of
credit for short-term financing with CFC at a floating rate of interest. This line of
credit is also used to provide letters of credit to fuel suppliers. At December 31, 2010,
$2,000,000 in letters of credit had been issued under this arrangement. In addition,
$15,000,000 of this credit facility is reserved in connection with the variable-rate term
loans described in Note 8. The line of credit has a three-year term.
Subsequent to December 31, 2010, Golden Spread obtained a $75 million unsecured
line of credit from Bank of America that bears interest at LIBOR plus 175 basis points
and expires December 31, 2011. In addition, Golden Spread obtained an additional
$75 million line of credit from CFC, on the same terms and conditions as the $125
million line of credit noted above, but with an expiration date of September 30, 2011.
Both of these additional lines of credit were secured to ensure adequate funding of
the Cooperative’s current construction program. All of the short-term borrowings
incurred to finance the construction activities will be repaid through a private debt
offering that is expected to be completed in June 2011.
	The Cooperative incurred interest on short-term borrowings of $1,530,393 in 2010,
$186,816 in 2009, and $183,194 in 2008, of which $1,438,839 was capitalized in 2010.
8.	Long-Term Debt
	Long-term debt is summarized as follows:
December 31
				
2010
2009
Variable-Rate Term Loans
$ 76,569,000
$
80,980,800
5.75% Senior Secured Notes		
45,451,500		
47,416,100
6.00% - 8.10% Fixed-Rate Mortgage Notes		
13,833,398		
14,106,366
	Variable-Rate Mortgage Notes
5,260,323
5,788,503
			
$ 141,114,221
$ 148,291,769
	Less: Current Maturities
7,806,550
7,177,262
				
$ 133,307,671
$ 141,114,507
				
	The variable-rate term loans were issued upon GSEGC’s acquisition of an undivided
50 percent ownership interest in Mustang Station in a project financing. Under the
Credit Agreement with the lending banks, substantially all the assets of GSEGC are
pledged to the lending banks as collateral, including GSEGC’s interest in Mustang
Station, and a portion of its cash balances, special deposits, and reserve balances
totaling approximately $10,582,000 and $9,757,000 at December 31, 2010 and
2009, respectively. The debt is a variable-rate debt equal to LIBOR plus an interest
margin that ranged from 1.50 percent to 1.55 percent in 2008 through 2010, and
that increases over time to 1.65 percent over the term of the loan. GSEGC has
entered into agreements to hedge the entire outstanding principal at fixed equivalent
rates ranging from 7.40 percent to 7.76 percent and increasing over time to fixed
equivalent rates up to 7.88 percent. Final maturity of these notes is in 2020. GSEGC’s
assets are excluded from the Trust Indenture (described on page 43) and the variablerate term loans are not secured under the Trust Indenture.
	The Credit Agreement contains various covenants and restrictions, including
requirements for maintenance of a debt service reserve equal to six months’ debt
service requirements, maintenance of a working capital reserve of $3,500,000,

maintenance of a specified minimum Debt Service Coverage ratio (DSC of 1.20
was required in 2008 through 2010), and restrictions on distributions. GSEGC was
in compliance with the Credit Agreement at December 31, 2010 and 2009, and
has met all the requirements necessary to pay distributions to Golden Spread. Such
distributions totaled $7,447,253 in 2010 and $7,002,356 in 2009. At December 31,
2010, GSEGC held approximately $10,558,000 that was available for distribution to
Golden Spread.
	The senior secured notes are first mortgage obligations issued by Golden Spread
in May 2005, through a private placement. The senior secured notes are secured
under a Trust Indenture, dated as of April 1, 2005, as supplemented (Trust Indenture).
Pursuant to the Trust Indenture, Golden Spread has created a first lien on certain
of its tangible and intangible assets in favor of the indenture trustee to secure debt
issued under the Trust Indenture on a pro-rata basis. Golden Spread has a business
model of having its generation assets held in wholly-owned affiliates. In connection
with certain generation assets constructed by Golden Spread, the assets initially are
owned by Golden Spread and are subject to the lien of the Trust Indenture. After
commercial operation, title to these assets is transferred to the wholly-owned affiliate
in exchange for notes issued by the affiliate under a trust indenture substantially
identical to the Trust Indenture. These notes constitute “Qualifying Securities” under
the Trust Indenture and are assets of Golden Spread. These Qualifying Securities may
be “Designated Qualifying Securities” or “Undesignated Qualifying Securities” under
the Trust Indenture. In the case of Designated Qualifying Securities, Golden Spread
issues debt under the Trust Indenture on the basis of the Designated Qualifying
Securities and the Designated Qualifying Securities have the same terms as the
Golden Spread debt. Assets held under the Trust Indenture totaled $139,913,000 at
December 31, 2010 and included the Mustang land site, the Plant Held for Future
Use reported on the consolidated balance sheets and Qualifying Securities. The Trust
Indenture requires Golden Spread to establish and collect rates for the use or the
sale of the output, capacity or service of its system that, together with other revenues
available to Golden Spread, are reasonably expected to yield a Margins for Interest
Ratio of at least 1.10 for each fiscal year. The Trust Indenture also contains restrictions
on distributions by Golden Spread to its Members. The senior secured notes are
fixed-rate obligations bearing interest at 5.75 percent, with equal semi-annual
principal and interest payments of $2,331,550, payable over 20 years and YEGC
has issued notes constituting Designated Qualifying Securities with terms identical
to these notes. For the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, Golden
Spread accrued $2,681,097, $2,790,000 and $2,903,000 in interest, respectively, of
which $2,058,760 was capitalized in 2010. The supplemental indenture under which
the senior secured notes were issued contains certain covenants that relate only to
those notes. These covenants include the maintenance of (i) patronage capital and
contributed capital in an amount of not less than $50,000,000 and (ii) a debt service
coverage ratio of 1.25.
	At December 31, 2010, the Cooperative had sufficient assets, including Qualifying
Securities under the indenture to issue more than $60,000,000 in additional debt.
	The variable and fixed-rate mortgage notes are due in quarterly installments and are
secured by the Cooperative’s transmission assets (with a book value of $30,434,000
and $29,430,000 at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively) and the revenues
recoverable through the special facilities charges associated with the special
facilities. Mortgage notes of $2,810,666 were assumed by Golden Spread in 2009
in connection with the transfer of transmission and substation facilities by Members,
as described in Note 3. Assets transferred in 2010 of $2,324,701 were financed with
short-term borrowings to be replaced with permanent financing in the near future.
These assets are excluded from the Trust Indenture and the variable and fixed-rate
mortgage notes are not secured under the Trust Indenture.
	As of December 31, 2010, annual maturities of long-term debt for the next five years
are as follows:
			
2011
$
7,806,550
			
2012		
10,416,274
			
2013		
10,893,946
			
2014		
11,716,800
			
2015		
12,393,454
9.	Derivative Instruments
	The Cooperative has entered into interest rate swap agreements to hedge against
changes in floating interest rates on the variable-rate term loans issued to finance
Mustang Station. The interest rate swap agreements effectively convert floating rates
into fixed rates so that the Cooperative can predict with greater assurance what its
future interest costs will be and protect itself against increases in floating rates.
	The Cooperative also routinely enters into physical commodity contracts for purchases
of natural gas and has capacity sales contracts with its Members. Both types of

these contracts generally qualify for the normal purchase and sales exception under
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
	Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges
are recorded in Accumulated Comprehensive Income (ACI) for the effective portion.
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the entire hedge is considered effective and is
recorded in ACI.
	The following reflects the amounts that are recorded in assets, liabilities, and in ACI
at December 31, 2010 and 2009, for the Cooperative’s derivative instruments:
		
December 31
					
2010
		
2009
Total Derivative Liabilities
$
14,250,000		
13,000,000
					
		 $
			
	Comprehensive (Gain) Loss on Cash Flow Hedges			
Before Reclassification Adjustment
$
1,250,000		 $
(6,900,000)
	Reclassification Adjustment (Gain) Loss		
Included in Net Income
-		
	Net Comprehensive (Income) Loss from
Derivative Instruments
$
1,250,000		
(6,900,000)
					
		 $
	Total unrealized comprehensive (gain) loss on cash flow hedges represent the
cumulative effect on the Cooperative’s ACI balance from losses due to effective
cash flow hedges. For the year ended December 31, 2010, the loss from effective
cash flow hedges was $1,250,000 resulting in a cumulative loss of $14,250,000 at
December 31, 2010.
	As of December 31, 2010, the maximum length of time over which the Cooperative
is hedging its exposure to the variability in future cash flows for forecasted
transactions is nine years. The Cooperative expects the entire hedge to remain
effective throughout the term of the related debt and does not expect to reclassify
ACI into earnings in the future.
10.	Pension Benefits
Golden Spread provides pension benefits for substantially all of its employees
through the National Rural Electric Cooperative Association Retirement and Security
Program and Savings Plan. The Retirement and Security Plan is a defined benefit
pension plan for which Golden Spread makes contributions to the plan equal to the
amounts accrued for pension expense. In this multi-employer plan, which is available
to all Member cooperatives of NRECA, the accumulated benefits and plan assets
are not determined or allocated separately by individual employer. Golden Spread’s
regular contributions to the plan in 2010, 2009, and 2008, were $715,342, $362,272,
and $261,091, respectively.
	The savings plan has been established under Section 401(K) of the Internal
Revenue Code, as a defined contribution plan. Under the savings plan, Golden
Spread matches employee contributions up to a maximum of four percent of each
participating employee’s salary. Employer contributions to the plan for the years
ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008 were $100,010, $62,790, and $42,656,
respectively.
Golden Spread has a deferred compensation plan to provide supplemental
retirement benefits for certain highly-compensated employees. At December 31,
2010 and 2009, the liability associated with the deferred compensation plan was
$147,460 and $68,536, respectively. Such amounts are included in deferred credits
in the accompanying financial statements. In addition, under the NRECA-sponsored
plan, Golden Spread has been required to make contributions to NRECA to offset
the ultimate funding of the liability by Golden Spread. Investments of $147,460 and
$728,092 are included in deferred charges in the accompanying financial statements
at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Upon the retirement of any employees
who are participants in the plan, Golden Spread will fully fund any liability to the
employee and NRECA will provide Golden Spread with a credit of an equal amount
which will be used to reduce Golden Spread’s required future contributions to the
defined benefit pension plan discussed in the previous paragraph.
11. Significant Customers
Golden Spread has three Members whose power purchases typically represent at
least 10 percent of Golden Spread’s annual power sales to its Members. For each of
the three years ended December 31, 2010, sales to South Plains Electric Cooperative,
Inc. represented 14 to 15 percent of sales to members (10 to 12 percent of total sales).
In the same periods, sales to Lyntegar Electric Cooperative, Inc. represented 11 to 12
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percent of sales to Members (8 to 11 percent of total sales) and sales to Deaf Smith
Electric Cooperative, Inc. represented 11 to 12 percent of sales to Members (8 to 10
percent of total sales).
For the year ended December 31, 2008, sales to Southwestern Public Service
Company (SPS) represented approximately 21 percent of Golden Spread’s total
annual wholesale power sales. In 2010 and 2009 sales to SPS represented
approximately 6 percent and 4 percent, respectively, of Golden Spread’s total
annual wholesale power sales.
12.	Commitments and Contingencies
Golden Spread is party to a Power Sales Agreement (PSA) with SPS. The PSA
provides for a specified annual capacity (megawatt) purchase commitment. The
megawatt purchase commitment may be increased or decreased annually pursuant
to the terms of the contract. Golden Spread purchased 505 megawatts under the PSA
from January through May 2010 at which time the purchase obligation increased to
525 megawatts. No further increases in the purchase obligation will occur during
the remaining term of the PSA which terminates in April 2012. Golden Spread also
is party to a Replacement Power Sales Agreement (RPSA) with SPS. The RPSA will
become effective upon termination of the PSA. The RPSA has a seven year term, with
Golden Spread purchasing 500 megawatts in years 1-3, 300 megawatts in years 4-5,
and 200 megawatts in years 6-7.
Under purchase power agreements with DCEA and GSEGC, Golden Spread is
obligated to purchase all of the capacity of Mustang Station.
Golden Spread serves substantially all of its ERCOT Members’ loads with power
purchased pursuant to a full-requirements wholesale power agreement with AEP
Energy Partners, Inc. (AEP) that will expire December 31, 2013.
	On October 16, 2008 the Seventh Court of Appeals reversed in part a February 3,
2006 order issued by the Potter County District Court granting summary judgment
in favor of DCEA in a dispute related to the DCEA PPA with Golden Spread. Further
proceedings before the Potter County District Court are being held in abeyance
while Golden Spread and DCEA discuss potential settlement (see Note 14).
		
	In October 2006 an Arbitrator issued an award in an arbitration proceeding involving
disputes with DCEA over the pricing of energy sold to Golden Spread under the
DCEA PPA and the allocation of costs to GSEGC under the JOA for Mustang Station.
The award granted monetary damages and injunctive relief to Golden Spread and
GSEGC. In November 2006, the Arbitrator issued a corrected award that addressed
minor typographical errors in the October 2006 award and in December 2006 the
Arbitrator issued an order resolving a dispute over damages. In December 2008,
the Potter County District Court issued a Final Judgment confirming the award as to
both Golden Spread and GSEGC and denying DCEA’s motion to vacate or modify
the award. In February 2009, DCEA filed a motion with the Potter County District
Court again requesting that the award be vacated or modified, or in the alternative
requesting a new trial. On April 15, 2009, the Court denied the DCEA motion. In
May 2009, DCEA again filed a motion for a new trial, which Golden Spread and
GSEGC opposed. The court again denied DCEA’s motion and DCEA appealed the
Order to the Seventh Court of Appeals in Amarillo, Texas. The appeal is pending (see
Note 14).
13.	Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Many of the Cooperative’s fixed-rate obligations included in the accompanying
financial statements are obligations that lack an available market with similar terms,
conditions, and maturities. Accordingly, assumptions, estimations, and present value
calculations were used for purposes of determining the fair value of such financial
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instruments. Estimated fair value has been determined by calculating the present
value of financial instruments using the best available data.
Fair value for some amounts carried in the financial statements has not been
calculated. The recorded book value for temporary investments approximates fair
value given the short period to maturity. Long-term variable interest notes re-price
frequently at market rates; therefore, the carrying amounts approximate fair value.
Hedges used to offset the variable nature of these notes are recorded in Accumulated
Comprehensive Income.
	The estimated fair value of the Cooperative’s financial instruments at December 31,
2010, is as follows:
				
Carrying		
Fair
				
Value
Value
CFC Fixed Rate Long-Term Debt
$ 13,833,398
$
13,540,000
Senior Secured Notes
45,451,500
49,303,000
				
$ 59,284,898
$
62,843,000
				
	The fair value of the Cooperative’s CFC fixed rate long-term debt is calculated
by computing the present value of the individual notes to the next re-pricing
date using a discount rate that is the current CFC fixed interest rate available for
long-term debt. The fair value of the senior secured notes is calculated using the
discount rate that represents the rate at which the Cooperative could borrow those
funds at December 31, 2010.
	The Cooperative utilizes the following fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three broad levels, as follows:
			Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
			 assets or liabilities that the Cooperative has the ability to access at the
			 measurement date.
			Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included with Level 1 that are
			 observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
			Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
	Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires
judgment considering factors specific to the asset or liability. Long-Term Debt
valuations are considered Level 2.

14. Subsequent Events
	On April 14, 2011, Golden Spread and ArcLight Capital Partners, LLC (ArcLight)
entered into a definitive agreement whereby ArcLight will sell to Golden Spread its
ownership interest in DCEA, the joint owner, with GSEGC, of Mustang Station (see
Note 1). Like GSEGC, DCEA’s ownership is a 50 percent undivided interest. As part
of the definitive agreement, the proposed transaction will result in full settlement
of all pending litigation and arbitration disputes (see Note 12). Consideration for
the transfer requires a cash payment by Golden Spread and assumption of the
outstanding debt of DCEA. The transaction has an effective date of January 31, 2011.
Upon closing, affiliates of Golden Spread will own 100 percent of Mustang Station.
DCEA is indirectly owned by Great Point Power, LLC, a subsidiary of ArcLight Energy
Partners Fund IV, L.P. Subject to regulatory approval, the transaction is expected to
close during the second quarter of 2011.
The Cooperative’s management has evaluated subsequent events through May 3, 2011,
the date which the financial statements were available for issue. No other events
have occurred that meet the criteria for disclosure set forth by the FASB Accounting
Standards Codification.

5 -Y e ar summary of condensed fin a nci a l
Data and S tatis tic a l Information
							
Condensed Consolidated Income
2010
2009
Statement Data (000)						
Operating Revenues
$ 396,927 		 $ 345,641 		 $
Operating Expenses						
Fuel and Purchased Power Expenses
$ 312,629 		 $ 270,840 		 $
	Plant Operations and Maintenance		
6,825 		
8,190 		
	Administrative and General		
14,619 		
14,814 		
	Depreciation		
8,677 		
8,448 		
	Taxes Other Than Income Taxes		
1,960 		
2,124 		
	Other Operating Expenses
4,198 		
7,150 		
		Total Operating Expenses
348,908
311,565 		
Operating Margins
$ 48,019 		 $
34,076 		 $
Fixed Charges
7,742 		
10,945 		
Operating Margins – after Fixed Charges
$ 40,277 $
23,131 		 $
Non-Operating Margins
6,853 		
1,342 		
Net Margins
$ 47,130				 $
24,473				 $
				
						
Condensed Consolidated Balance
Sheet Data (000)						
Utility Plant, Net
$ 436,242 		 $ 216,133 		 $
	Other Property and Investments		
54,467 		
36,766 		
	Cash and Investments
38,582 		
99,595 		
	Other Current Assets		
49,053 			
44,110 		
	Other Assets
5,375 		
17,463 		
		Total Assets
$ 583,719				 $ 414,067				 $
				
				
Patronage and Contributed Capital		 $265,676 		 $ 222,976 $
Accumulated Comprehensive Income (Loss)
(14,250)
(13,000 )
		Total Equitites
$ 251,426 		 $ 209,976 		 $
	Long-Term Debt, excluding current maturities $ 133,308 		 $ 141,114 		 $
	Current Liabilities		 183,282 		
48,602 		
	Deferred Credits
15,703 		
14,375 		
		Total Liabilities
$ 332,293 		 $ 204,091 		 $
		Total Equities and Liabilities
$ 583,719				 $ 414,067				 $
				

2008

		

2007

		

2006

601,216 		 $ 483,414 		 $ 436,106
507,732 		 $ 397,544 		 $ 373,210
6,601 		
8,265 		
8,868
14,605 		
12,444 		 14,504
8,106 		
7,099 			
5,132
1,507 		
1,478 		
1,382
2,345 		
1,888 		
3,174 			
540,896 		
428,718 		
406,270
60,320 		 $ 54,696 		 $ 29,836
10,603 		
9,669 		
9,996
49,717 		 $ 45,027 		 $ 19,840
2,945 		
3,954 		
5,331
52,662				 $ 48,981				 $ 25,171

201,831 		 $ 197,056 		 $ 183,911
35,832 		
25,574 		 25,838
126,346 		
83,743 		 75,687
44,178 		
48,172 		 41,353
21,005 		
18,791 		
14,318
429,192				 $ 373,336				 $ 341,107
216,503 $
(19,900 )
196,603 		 $
145,457 		 $
65,284 		
21,848 		
232,589 		 $
429,192				 $

178,841 $
(9,400 )
169,441 		 $
143,142 		 $
49,354 		
11,399 		
203,895 		 $
373,336				 $

132,785
(6,400)
126,385
148,189
58,836
7,697
214,722
341,107

Other Financial and Statistical Data						
Energy Sales						
	Energy Sales to Members (MWh)
5,453,317 			 5,683,372			 5,512,647			 4,533,123			4,923,961
	Energy Sales to Nonmembers (MWh)
1,356,177 		
973,788		 2,090,060		 2,250,465		 1,553,790
		Total
6,809,494				 6,657,160				 7,602,707				 6,783,588				 6,477,751
				 Energy Sales (MWh)
Member Peak Demand (MW)		
1,372 		
1,290 		
1,323 		
1,182 		
1,222
Member System Load Factor (%)		
45.37 		
50.28			
47.56			
43.78			
46.00
Energy Generated (MWh)
746,079 		 1,106,991 		 1,273,792 			 1,357,942 		1,238,283
Energy Purchased (MWh)		 6,207,239 		 5,718,545 		 6,487,139 		 5,522,155 			5,335,567
Average Sales Price ($/MWh)						
Member
$
62.82 $
51.34 		 $
81.95 		 $
72.55 		 $
69.48
	Nonmember
$
41.90 $
36.41 		 $
79.23 		 $
69.02 		 $
59.61
Average Natural Gas Price ($/MMBtu)
$
4.34 		 $
3.63 		 $
7.34 		 $
6.48 		 $
6.04
Financial Ratios						
	Equity/Capitalization (%)		
50 		
58			
56			
53			
43
	Debt Service Coverage (DSC) Ratio		
3.48			
2.69			
4.51			
4.46			
2.65
	Debt/Funds Available for Debt Service		
4.07			
3.47			
2.17			
2.31			
4.19
	Net Plant/Net Debt		
2.14			
4.64			
8.73			
3.06			
2.13
	Current Ratio		
1.16			
2.96			
2.61			
2.67			
2.01
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energy and fin a nci a l ch a r t s

Coincident Demand
(in Hundreds of Megawatts)

Summer
Winter

15

Summer peak loads are affected by weather
conditions in the Members’ service territory;
however, over the last four years, peak demand
has been in a fairly narrow range of 1,200-1,400
megawatts. Winter peaks have shown steady
growth consistent with Golden Spread’s average
growth rate.

12

9

6

3

2006

2007

2008

2009

Customers by Rate Classification
2010

Residential
Irrigation
Commercial

Usage by Rate Classification
2010

56.2%
23.6%
20.2%

The composition of customers by rate
classification has remained stable from
year to year.
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2010

Residential 22.2%
Irrigation
23.6%
Commercial 54.2%

2009

2008

Residential 19.9%
Irrigation
29.9%
Commercial 50.2%

Residential 19.9%
Irrigation
29.1%
Commercial 51.0%

Weather conditions also affect the mix of energy sales by
classification – particularly the level of irrigation sales, which
can generally range from 20 percent to 30 percent of total
energy sales. Above-average precipitation in spring and early
summer characterized 2010 weather conditions, reducing the
irrigation load.

Average Natural Gas Price

Average Rate to Members
(in Cents per Kilowatt-Hour)

(in Millions of BTUs)
8

8

$7.34
7
$6.04

7.0¢
4.2¢

7.3¢

4.2¢

4.1¢
6.1¢

6

5
$3.63

2.4¢

2.0¢

5

$4.34
4

5.4¢

4

3

3

2

2

1

1

0

0

3.7¢
3.2¢

3.4¢

3.7¢

Lower natural gas prices in 2010 and 2009 resulted
in substantial savings for Members, with the average
rate declining from 7.9¢/ kWh to 6.1¢/kWh in 2010
and 5.4¢/ kWh in 2009, which resulted in annual
savings to Members of approximately $93 million in
2010 and $114 million in 2009.

2010

2009

2008

2007

2010

2009

2008

2007

2006

2.8¢

2006

6

7

$6.48

Fuel
Base

7.9¢

Base rates have ranged from 2.8¢/kWh to 3.7¢/kWh
over the past five years, with fuel costs of 2.0¢/kWh
to 4.2¢/kWh being the largest determinant of the
total average rate to Members.

Equity-to-Capitalization (%)

Debt Service Coverage (DSC) Ratio
5

60

4

50

3

40

2

30

1

20

0

2007

2008

2009

2010

Debt-to-Funds Available for Debt Service (FADS)
12

10

2007

2008

2009

2010

G & Ts rated A+ and above
A rated G & Ts
A- rated G & Ts
Golden Spread

10

Golden Spread has been planning for its capital
expansion plan by accumulating equity and
producing margins to achieve ratios that significantly
exceed the average ratios of other Generation and
Transmission cooperatives.

8
6
4
2
0

2007

2008

2009

2010

(Source Data: Fitch Ratings’ U.S. Public Power Peer Studies
issued in 2008 through 2010)
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member cooper ativ e s’ Information
2 0 1 0 S U M M AR Y

				

Number of Employees . . . . . . . . . .
Total Services in Place . . . . . . . . . .
Miles of Line . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Peak Demand (kW - NCP) . . . . . . .
Sales (MWh) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Net Utility Plant . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Margins Plus Equities . . . . . . . . . . .
Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Cost of Purchased Power . . . . . . . .
Interest on Long-Term Debt . . . . . .
Net Margins . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
DSC . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Equity Ratio (%) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Net Plant to Net Debt . . . . . . . . . .

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

				

				
				

BIG		
COUNTRY

COLEMAN		
COUNTY

CONCHO	
VALLEY

41
9,093
2,829
100,018
271,204
41,339
59,705
32,185
28,871
21,223
789
2,339
1.71
53.91
1.72

52
17,466
5,281
36,856
218,450
43,114
62,915
31,621
24,460
13,990
1,134
3,521
2.45
50.26
1.70

31
12,393
3,769
30,372
128,243
16,383
26,108
14,066
12,451
7,963
539
1,573
2.10
53.88
1.72

50
15,499
4,028
48,716
232,909
49,989
65,127
26,661
24,733
14,949
1,461
2,502
1.85
40.94
1.45

LAMB
COUNTY

				

Number of Employees . . . . . . . . . .
Total Services in Place . . . . . . . . . .
Miles of Line . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Peak Demand (kW - NCP) . . . . . . .
Sales (MWh) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Net Utility Plant . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Margins Plus Equities . . . . . . . . . . .
Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Cost of Purchased Power . . . . . . . .
Interest on Long-Term Debt . . . . . .
Net Margins . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
DSC . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Equity Ratio (%) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Net Plant to Net Debt (1) . . . . . . . .

BAILEY		
COUNTY

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

41
12,761
3,069
126,396
311,737
44,394
76,685
32,193
31,610
23,457
1,420
4,374
1.68
41.98
1.62

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

LIGHTHOUSE

		
LYNTEGAR

NORTH		
PLAINS

40
9,972
4,265
105,910
239,335
36,669
59,072
31,008
26,764
19,155
1,250
3,246
1.59
52.49
1.47

115
25,270
6,898
193,310
567,313
93,209
160,441
83,543
58,273
39,448
3,268
6,524
1.70
52.07
1.47

35
7,103
3,573
64,000
240,975
31,488
49,598
28,667
23,736
15,959
762
4,047
2.47
57.80
2.11

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

SOUTHWEST	
SWISHER		
TEXAS 		

Number of Employees . . . . . . . . . .
41
Total Services in Place . . . . . . . . . .
12,210
Miles of Line . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
5,176
Peak Demand (kW - NCP) . . . . . . .
24,739
Sales (MWh) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .		 199,325
Net Utility Plant . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 28,621
Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 40,843
Margins Plus Equities . . . . . . . . . . . $ 31,573
Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 19,837
Cost of Purchased Power . . . . . . . . $ 12,260
Interest on Long-Term Debt . . . . . . $
261
Net Margins . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $
2,568
DSC . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
3.37
Equity Ratio (%) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
77.30
Net Plant to Net Debt . . . . . . . . . . .
6.62

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

38
9,114
3,573
69,595
148,440
19,314
39,380
25,476
18,056
13,317
491
1,324
0.80
64.69
3.37

(1) Rita Blanca’s cash and investments are greater than its debt, resulting in a negative ratio.
Dollar values are in thousands.
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$
$
$
$
$
$
$

TAYLOR	

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

72
23,374
4,780
97,402
278,893
63,382
88,595
34,111
34,687
18,572
2,824
5,814
2.21
38.50
1.48

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

TRI-COUNTY

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

89
26,367
5,371
140,146
822,581
152,244
191,660
42,422
74,111
44,771
9,428
6,484
1.57
22.13
1.11

DEAF		
SMITH

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

51 		
33
15,414 		
6,053
4,750 		
2,409
192,750 		
21,569
568,733 		 103,184
41,466 		
$ 21,522
88,458 		
$ 28,628
64,931 		
$
8,790
53,669 		
$ 11,376
41,362 		
$
6,139
548
$
791
8,925 		
$
1,301
5.77 		
1.33
73.40 		
30.70
16.29 		
1.15
RITA			
BLANCA	 		

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

		

GREENBELT

SOUTH
PLAINS

27 		
135
7,658 		
59,771
3,160 		
9,574
61,658 		 298,216
274,424 		 1,319,931
22,508 		
$ 161,589
48,850 		
$ 233,828
37,170 		
$ 89,111
22,568 		
$ 114,113
17,134 		
$ 89,011
257
$
5,027
3,438 		
$ 10,370
4.21 		
1.46
76.09 		
38.11
(7.49 )
1.42
TOTAL	

891
269,518
72,505
1,611,653
5,925,677
$ 867,231
$1,319,893
$ 613,528
$ 579,315
$ 398,710
$ 30,250
$ 68,350
1.88
46.48
1.59

1. Bailey County

11. Rita Blanca

2. Big Country

12. South Plains

3. Coleman County

13. Southwest Texas

4. Concho Valley

14. Swisher

5. Deaf Smith

15. Taylor

6. Greenbelt

16. Tri-County

7. Lamb County

Golden Spread Panhandle Wind Ranch

8. Lighthouse

Antelope Station

9. Lyntegar

Mustang Station

10. North Plains

Fort Concho Gas Storage Facility

Golden Spread Electric
C o o p e r at i v e , i n c .

P.O. Box 9898
Amarillo, Texas 79105
806.379.7766
www.gsec.coop

